THE GREEN ORGANIC DUTCHMAN HOLDINGS LTD.



Notice of Annual General and Special Meeting

and

Management Information Circular

May 17, 2022

Date of Meeting: Wednesday, June 29, 2022

Time: 11:00 a.m. (Eastern Time)

Virtual Meeting: Via live webcast only @

www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/TGOD2022



Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the board of directors and management of The Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd. (the "Corporation" or "TGOD"), I am pleased to invite you to the 2022 Annual General and Special Meeting of shareholders (the "Meeting") which will be held on June 29, 2022 at 11:00 am (Eastern Time).

In keeping with our commitment to the health and safety of our shareholders, employees and the broader community, in response to the ongoing global COVID-19 pandemic and because shareholder engagement is important to us, we have opted to hold the Meeting in a virtual-only format again this year. You will be able to participate via a live audio webcast online at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/TGOD2022.

The attached Notice of the 2022 Annual General and Special Meeting and Information Circular describes the formal business to be conducted at the Meeting and contains detailed instructions on how to participate. Registered shareholders and appointed proxyholders will have the opportunity to ask questions and vote on all matters put before the Meeting.

Whether or not you plan to attend the Meeting, your vote is important to us. Please vote either electronically using the telephone and internet voting procedures described on the Proxy or VIF, or complete, sign, date and return the enclosed Proxy or VIF in the envelope provided at your earliest convenience.

Our team is committed to the long-term success of TGOD and we thank you for your support and continued trust.

I look forward to your participation in the Meeting.

Sincerely,

/s/ Sean Bovingdon Sean Bovingdon Chief Executive Officer & Director



THE GREEN ORGANIC DUTCHMAN HOLDINGS LTD.

6205 Airport Road, Building A – Suite 200, Mississauga, Ontario L4V 1E3 Tel: (905) 304-4201 Email: invest@tgod.ca

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General and Special Meeting (the "**Meeting**") of holders ("**Shareholders**") of common shares ("**Common Shares**") in the capital of **The Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd.** (the "**Corporation**") will be held on Wednesday, June 29, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. (Eastern Time), via live audio webcast online at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/TGOD2022 for the following purposes:

- 1. tabling the audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, together with the report of the auditors thereon and the related management discussion and analysis;
- 2. fixing the number of directors of the Corporation to be elected at eight (8);
- 3. election of the directors of the Corporation who will serve until the end of the next annual shareholder meeting or until their successors are appointed;
- 4. appointment of KPMG LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, as auditor of the Corporation for the ensuing year and to authorize the directors to fix its remuneration;
- 5. consideration of and, if thought advisable, the passing of, with or without variation, a special resolution, the full text of which is included in the accompanying management information circular dated May 17, 2022 (the "Information Circular"), approving amendments to the articles of incorporation of the Corporation (the "Articles") to effect a consolidation (the "Consolidation") of all of the issued and outstanding Common Shares on the basis of a Consolidation ratio to be selected by the board of directors of the Corporation (the "Board") in its discretion, provided that the Consolidation ratio will be no greater than one (1) post-Consolidation Common Share for every ten (10) pre-Consolidation Common Shares;
- 6. consideration of and, if thought advisable, the passing of, with or without variation, a special resolution, the full text of which is included in the accompanying Information Circular, approving an amendment to the Articles in order to change the name of the Corporation to such name as the Board, in their sole discretion and subject to applicable regulatory approval, determines to be appropriate; and
- 7. transacting such further and other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

The Information Circular accompanies and forms part of this Notice of Annual General and Special Meeting of Shareholders (the "Notice"). The Information Circular contains details of matters to be

considered at the Meeting. No other matters are contemplated, however any permitted amendment to, or variation of any matter identified in this Notice may properly be considered at the Meeting. The Meeting may also consider the transaction of such other business as may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

We will hold our Meeting in a virtual-only format, which will be conducted via live audio webcast. A virtual-only meeting is being adopted to give all Shareholders an equal opportunity to participate and encourage more active Shareholder engagement at the Meeting online regardless of their geographic location, particular constraints, or personal circumstances. You will find important information and detailed instructions about how to participate in our virtual Meeting in the accompanying Information Circular.

The Board has fixed Tuesday, May 10, 2022 as the record date (the "**Record Date**") for the Meeting. Shareholders of record on the Corporation's books at the close of business on Tuesday, May 10, 2022 are entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting or at any postponement or adjournment thereof. Each Common Share is entitled to one vote.

An "ordinary resolution" is a resolution passed by at least a majority of the votes cast by Shareholders who voted in respect of that resolution at the Meeting.

A "special resolution" is a resolution passed by at least two-thirds of the votes cast by Shareholders who voted in respect of that resolution at the Meeting.

The Corporation has made available copies of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, together with the report of the auditors thereon and the accompanying management's discussion and analysis, through the "notice and access" procedures and the documents are available under the Corporation's profile on www.sedar.com.

Most Shareholders have a choice of voting over the internet, by telephone or by using the traditional form of proxy. Please refer to the accompanying proxy materials or the information forwarded by your bank, broker or other holder of record to see which voting methods are available to you. Your vote by proxy will ensure your representation at the Meeting, regardless of whether you attend the Meeting or not.

DATED at Mississauga, Ontario, May 17, 2022.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(signed) "Sean Bovingdon"

Sean Bovingdon Chief Executive Officer & Director

Table of Contents

	Page
GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS	1
THE MEETING	4
SOLICITATION OF PROXIES	4
NOTICE & ACCESS	4
APPOINTMENT, VOTING AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES	6
INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS OR COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON	10
VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SECURITIES	10
PARTICULARS OF MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON	10
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	11
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	11
APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR	17
APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATION	18
APPROVAL OF THE NAME CHANGE	20
COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	21
SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS	29
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	32
INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS	33
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS	33
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	33
AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE	43
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	45
OTHER MATTERS	45
SCHEDULE A BOARD MANDATE	1
SCHEDULE B AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER	1

GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS

In this Information Circular, unless there is something in the context or subject matter inconsistent therewith, the following defined terms have the meanings hereinafter set forth:

- "Amended and Restated By-Law No.1" means the amended and restated By-Law No.1 adopted by the Board;
- "Articles" means the articles of incorporation of the Corporation;
- "Audit Committee" means the audit committee of the Corporation;
- "Board" means the board of directors of the Corporation;
- "Broadridge" means Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc.;
- "Business Day" means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or other than a day when banks in the City of Toronto, Ontario are not generally open for business;
- "CBCA" means the *Canada Business Corporations Act*, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-44, and the regulations made under that enactment, as amended:
- "CCAA" means the Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, and the regulations made under that enactment, as amended;
- "CEO" means Chief Executive Officer;
- "CFO" means Chief Financial Officer;
- "CGN Committee" means the corporate governance and nominating committee of the Corporation;
- "Code" means U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986;
- "Common Shares"" means the common shares in the capital of the Corporation;
- "Compensation Committee" means the compensation committee of the Corporation;
- "Consolidation" means the proposed consolidation of all of the issued and outstanding Common Shares on the basis of a Consolidation ratio to be selected by the Board in its discretion, provided that the Consolidation ratio will be no greater than one (1) post-Consolidation Common Share for every ten (10) pre-Consolidation Common Shares:
- "Corporation" or "TGOD" means The Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd.;
- "CRA" means the Canada Revenue Agency;
- "CSA" means the Canadian Securities Administrators;
- "CSE" means the Canadian Securities Exchange;
- "Eligible Persons" means any director, officer, employee or consultant, of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries as determined by the Board as being eligible for participation in the Corporation's Legacy Option Plan or Option Plan;
- "ESPP" means the amended and restated employee stock purchase plan adopted by the Board;
- "Incentive Stock Options" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Section 422 of the Code;

- "Information Circular" means this management information circular, including all schedules, appendices and exhibits to, and information incorporated by reference in, such management information circular, to be sent to Shareholders in connection with the Meeting;
- "Insider" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the TSX Company Manual;
- "Legacy Option Plan" means the option plan adopted by the Shareholders at the Corporation's annual general and special shareholder meeting held on January 31, 2018;
- "Majority Voting Policy" refers to the majority voting policy adopted by the Board;
- "Named Executive Officer" or "NEO" means (a) the CEO; (b) the CFO; (c) the most highly compensated executive officer of the Corporation (other than the CEO and the CFO) during the financial year ended December 31, 2021 earning more than \$150,000 annually, including, in aggregate, all salaries, fees, bonuses and perquisites; and (d) each individual who would be captured under (c) but for the fact that the individual is neither an executive officer of the Corporation, nor acting in a similar capacity, at the end of that financial year;
- "Name Change" means the change of the Corporation's name from "The Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd." in accordance with the Name Change Resolution;
- "Name Change Resolution" has the meaning set forth in "Particulars of Matters to be Acted Upon Approval of the Name Change";
- "NI 58-101" means National Instrument 58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices;
- "Odyssey" Odyssey Trust Company, the transfer agent of the Corporation.
- "Option Plan" means the 10% rolling share option plan last adopted by the Shareholders at the Corporation's annual general and special shareholder meeting held on June 29, 2021;
- "Optionee" shall mean an Eligible Person to whom an Option has been granted under the terms of the Corporation's Legacy Option Plan or Option Plan;
- "Options" means an option granted under the terms of the Legacy Option Plan or the Option Plan;
- "Participant" means employees, consultants and directors of the Corporation and its designated affiliates who are eligible to participate in the RSU Plan;
- "**Proxy**" means the proxy in the form solicited by management pursuant to this Information Circular, which form accompanies this Information Circular;
- "Record Date" means the record date for determination of persons entitled to receive notice of the Meeting;
- "Registered Shareholder" means a registered holder of Common Shares as recorded in the shareholder register of TGOD maintained by Odyssey;
- "RSU Plan" means the amended and restated restricted share unit plan adopted by the Board;
- "RSU" means restricted share units awarded under the RSU Plan;
- "Shareholder" or "TGOD Shareholder" means a holder of Common Shares;
- "TSX" means the Toronto Stock Exchange and any successor thereto;
- "U.S. Person" means a "U.S. person" as defined in Regulation S (the definition of which includes, but is not limited to, (i) any natural person resident in the United States, (ii) any partnership or corporation organized or incorporated under the laws of the United States, (iii) any partnership or corporation organized outside of the United States by a U.S. Person principally for the purpose of investing in securities not registered under the U.S. Securities Act, unless it is organized, or incorporated, and owned, by accredited investors who are not natural

persons, estates or trusts, and (iv) any estate or trust of which any executor or administrator or trustee is a U.S. Person;

"U.S. Securities Act" means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended;

"U.S." means the United States of America, its territories, any State of the United States and the District of Columbia; and

"VIF" means a voting instruction form.



THE GREEN ORGANIC DUTCHMAN HOLDINGS LTD.

6205 Airport Road, Building A – Suite 200, Mississauga, Ontario L4V 1E3

Tel: (905) 304-4201

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR

(Containing information as at May 17, 2022 unless indicated otherwise)

THE MEETING

This Information Circular is being provided in connection with the solicitation of proxies by management of the Corporation for use at the annual general and special meeting of Shareholders (the "Meeting") commencing at 11:00 a.m. (Eastern Time) Wednesday, June 29, 2022, and at all postponements or adjournments thereof, at the place and for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Meeting (the "Notice"). Consistent with the latest directives and orders of public health and governmental authorities regarding the COVID-19 coronavirus and in consideration of the health and safety of our Shareholders, colleagues and the broader community, this year's Meeting will be held in a virtual meeting format only again via live audio webcast online at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/TGOD2022. This Information Circular described the items to be voted on at the Meeting as well as the voting process, and provides information about director and executive compensation, governance practices and other relevant matters. Unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts in this Information Circular are expressed in Canadian dollars.

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This Information Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by management of the Corporation for use at the Meeting commencing at 11:00 a.m. (Eastern Time) Wednesday, June 29, 2022, and at all postponements or adjournments thereof, at the place and for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Meeting (the "Notice"). This solicitation is being made by or on behalf of management.

While it is expected that the solicitation of proxies for the Meeting will be made primarily by mail, proxies may be solicited personally or by telephone by the directors, officers and regular employees of the Corporation at nominal cost. All costs of solicitation by management will be borne by the Corporation. The Corporation has arranged for clearing agencies, securities dealers, banks and trust companies or their nominees (collectively, the "Intermediaries") to forward the meeting materials to beneficial owners of the Common Shares held of record by those Intermediaries and shall reimburse the Intermediaries for their reasonable fees and disbursements in that regard.

NOTICE & ACCESS

The Corporation is utilizing the notice-and-access mechanism ("Notice & Access") under NI 54-101 in the case of Beneficial Shareholders and National Instrument 51-102 – *Continuous Disclosure Obligations* ("NI 51-102") in the case of registered Shareholders. Notice & Access allows the Corporation to deliver the Notice, the Information Circular, Financial Statements (as defined below) and MD&A (as defined below), to Shareholders via specified electronic means provided that the conditions of NI 54-101

and NI 51-102 are met. In accordance with NI 54-101, the Corporation set the Record Date (as defined below) at least 40 days before the Meeting and filed a form of notification of the Record Date and the date of the Meeting at least 25 business days before the Record Date.

Website Where Meeting Materials are Posted

The Notice & Access provisions are a set of rules that allow reporting issuers to choose to deliver proxy-related materials to registered Shareholders and Beneficial Shareholders by posting electronic versions of proxy-related materials online, via the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval ("SEDAR") and on the Corporation's website at www.tgod.ca, rather than mailing paper copies of such materials to Shareholders.

The Corporation will not rely upon the use of "stratification". In order for a reporting issuer such as the Corporation to avail itself of the Notice & Access process, the Corporation must send a notice to Shareholders (the "N&A Notice"), including Beneficial Shareholders, indicating the websites where this Circular has been posted and explaining how a Shareholder can access the Circular online or obtain a paper copy from the Corporation as well as other basic information about the Meeting including, among other things, the matters to be voted on at the Meeting.

Electronic copies of the Circular, the Notice, the annual audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2021 ("Financial Statements") and management's discussion and analysis of the Corporation's results of operations and financial condition for the year ended December 31, 2021 ("MD&A") are available on the Corporation's SEDAR profile at www.sedar.com and online at www.tgod.ca. In relation to the Meeting, Shareholders with existing instructions on their account to receive printed materials and those Shareholders with addresses outside of Canada and the United States will receive a printed copy of the N&A Notice and Proxy or VIF, as applicable. All other Shareholders will receive only the required notification documentation under Notice & Access, which will not include a paper copy of the Circular.

Obtaining Paper Copies of Materials

The Corporation anticipates that using Notice & Access for delivery will directly benefit the Corporation through a substantial reduction in both postage and material costs, and also promote environmental responsibility by decreasing the large volume of paper documents generated by printing proxy-related materials. Shareholders with questions about Notice & Access can call the Corporation toll-free in North America at 1-888-603-TGOD (8463) or by emailing invest@tgod.ca. Shareholders may also obtain paper copies of the Circular, Financial Statements and MD&A free of charge by contacting the Corporation at the same toll-free number. Requests should be received at least five (5) business days in advance of the proxy cut-off date set out in the accompanying Proxy or VIF in order to receive the meeting materials in advance of the date of the Meeting.

Information for Shareholders not Resident in Canada

The Corporation is organized under the federal laws of Canada. The solicitation of proxies involves securities of a Canadian issuer and is being effected in accordance with applicable corporate and securities laws in Canada. Shareholders should be aware that the requirements applicable to the Corporation under Canadian laws may differ from requirements under corporate and securities laws relating to corporations in other jurisdictions. The enforcement of civil liabilities under the securities laws of other jurisdictions outside Canada may be affected adversely by the fact that the Corporation is organized under the laws of Canada. Shareholders may not be able to sue the Corporation and/or its directors or officers in a Canadian court for violations of foreign securities laws. It may be difficult to compel the Corporation to subject itself to a judgment of a court outside Canada.

APPOINTMENT, VOTING AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES

A Registered Shareholder can vote by proxy whether or not they attend the Meeting. The individuals named in the accompanying Proxy are officers and/or directors of the Corporation. A Registered Shareholder desiring to appoint some other person or Corporation to represent them at the Meeting other than the Corporation's designated representatives identified in the Proxy or VIF may do so online at www.proxyvote.com using the 16-digit control number provided on your Proxy or VIF. Doing so will reduce the risk of any mail disruptions in the current environment and will allow you to share the unique Appointee Information you have created with the person you have appointed to represent you at the Meeting. If you do not designate a proxyholder or appointee when completing your Proxy or VIF or if you do not provide the exact Appointee Identification Number and Appointee Name to any other person (other than the named proxyholders) who has been appointed to access and vote at the Meeting on your behalf, that other person will not be able to access the Meeting and vote on your behalf. If a Registered Shareholder is choosing to vote by proxy, the Proxy must be completed and submitted no later than 11:00 a.m. (Eastern Time) on Monday, June 27, 2022, or if the Meeting is adjourned, not less than 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time set for any reconvened meeting at which the proxy is to be used.

You MUST provide your proxyholder or appointee with the EXACT NAME and EIGHT CHARACTER APPOINTEE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER to access the Meeting. Proxyholders or appointees can only be validated at the Virtual Shareholder Meeting using the EXACT NAME and EIGHT CHARACTER APPOINTEE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER you enter.

Voting by Proxyholder

The persons named in the Proxy will vote or withhold from voting the Common Shares represented thereby in accordance with your instructions on any ballot that may be called for. If you specify a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, your Common Shares will be voted accordingly. The Proxy confers discretionary authority on the persons named therein with respect to:

- (a) each matter or group of matters identified therein for which a choice is not specified, other than the appointment of an auditor and the election of directors;
- (b) any amendment to or variation of any matter identified therein; and
- (c) any other matter that properly comes before the Meeting.

In respect of a matter for which a choice is not specified in the Proxy, the persons named in the Proxy will vote in accordance with the Board's recommendations. The Board recommends that Shareholders vote as follows:

- (a) **FOR** the fixing number of directors of the Corporation to be elected at eight (8);
- (b) **FOR** the election of each of the nominees to the board of directors listed under the heading "Election of Directors";
- (c) **FOR** the appointment of KPMG LLP as auditor of TGOD and that the Board of TGOD be authorized to fix the remuneration of the auditor;
- (d) **FOR** the approval of the Consolidation; and
- (e) **FOR** the approval of the Name Change.

The Proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein with respect to amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice and with respect to other matters which may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. At the time of the printing of this Information Circular, the management of the Corporation knows of no such amendments, variations or

other matters to come before the Meeting other than the matters referred to in the Notice. However, if any other matters which at present are not known to the management of the Corporation should properly come before the Meeting, the Proxy will be voted on such matters in accordance with the best judgment of the named proxies.

Registered Shareholders

Registered Shareholders may wish to vote by proxy whether or not they are able to attend the Meeting. Registered Shareholders may choose one of the following options to submit their vote:

Internet: Go to www.proxyvote.com or scan the QR Code on the Proxy to access the website.

Enter the 16-digit control number printed on the Proxy, and follow the instructions on

the screen.

Phone: Call 1-800-474-7493 (English) or 1-800-474-7501 (French) and follow the instructions.

You will need to enter the 16-digit control number. Follow the interactive voice

recording instructions to submit your vote.

Mail: By completing, dating and signing the Proxy and returning in the pre-paid envelope

provided.

At the Meeting: Registered Shareholder and duly appointed proxyholders can vote at the appropriate

times by completing a ballot online during the Meeting. We anticipate that once voting has opened during the Meeting, the resolutions and voting choices will be displayed and you will be able to vote by selecting your voting choices from the options shown on the

screen. You must click submit for your vote to be counted.

In all cases the Registered Shareholder must ensure the proxy is received at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and statutory holidays) before the Meeting, or the adjournment thereof, at which the Proxy is to be used. The Chair of the Meeting may waive or extend the proxy cut-off time at his discretion without notice.

Beneficial Shareholders

The following information is of significant importance to Shareholders who do not hold Common Shares in their own name. Beneficial Shareholders should note that the only proxies that can be recognized and acted upon at the Meeting are those deposited by Registered Shareholders (those whose names appear on the records of the Corporation as the registered holders of Common Shares) or as set out in the following disclosure.

If Common Shares are listed in an account statement provided to a Shareholder by an Intermediary, then in almost all cases those Common Shares will not be registered in the Shareholder's name on the records of the Corporation. Such Common Shares will more likely be registered under the names of the Shareholder's Intermediary or an agent of that Intermediary. In Canada, the vast majority of such Common Shares are registered under the name of CDS & Co., as nominee for CDS Clearing and Depositary Services Inc., which acts as a depositary for many Canadian Intermediaries, and in the U.S., under the name of Cede & Co. as nominee for The Depository Trust Corporation (which acts as depositary for many U.S. brokerage firms and custodian banks).

Intermediaries are required to seek voting instructions from Beneficial Shareholders in advance of shareholder meetings. Every Intermediary has its own mailing procedures and provides its own return instructions to clients.

You should carefully follow the instructions of your Intermediary in order to ensure that your Common Shares are voted at the Meeting.

The VIF provided to you by your Intermediary will be similar to the Proxy provided to Registered Shareholders by the Corporation. However, its purpose is limited to instructing the Intermediary on how to vote your Common Shares on your behalf. Most Intermediaries now delegate responsibility for obtaining instructions from clients to Broadridge in Canada and in the U.S. Broadridge mails a VIF in lieu of a Proxy provided by the Corporation. The VIF will name the same persons as the Corporation's Proxy to represent

your Common Shares at the Meeting. The completed VIF must then be returned to Broadridge by mail or given to Broadridge by phone or over the internet, in accordance with Broadridge's instructions. Broadridge then tabulates the results of all instructions received and provides appropriate instructions respecting voting of Common Shares to be represented at the Meeting.

If you receive a VIF from Broadridge, the VIF must be completed and returned to Broadridge, in accordance with Broadridge's instructions, outlined below, at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and statutory holidays) before the Meeting in order to have the Common Shares voted at the Meeting, or to have an alternate representative duly appointed to attend the Meeting and vote your Common Shares.

The Chair of the Meeting may waive or extend the proxy cut-off time at his discretion without notice.

Internet: Go to <u>www.proxyvote.com</u> or scan the QR Code on the VIF to access the website. Enter

the 16-digit control number printed on the VIF, and follow the instructions on the screen.

Phone: Call 1-800-474-7493 (English) or 1-800-474-7501 (French) and follow the instructions. You

will need to enter the 16-digit control number. Follow the interactive voice recording

instructions to submit your vote.

Mail: By Completing, dating and signing the VIF and returning in the pre-paid envelope provided.

You have the right to appoint a person (who need not be a Beneficial Shareholder of the Corporation), other than any of the persons designated in the VIF to represent your Common Shares at the Meeting and that person may be you.

If you are a Beneficial Shareholder and wish to appoint someone as your proxyholder, including yourself, to participate in the Meeting, you should carefully follow the instructions indicated on the VIF provided by your Intermediary.

Participation at the Meeting

The Corporation is holding the Meeting in a virtual-only format, which will be conducted via live audio webcast online at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/TGOD2022. Shareholders will not be able to attend the meeting in person. Participating in the Meeting online enables registered Shareholders and duly appointed proxyholders (including those acting in accordance with the voting instructions received from Beneficial Shareholders) to vote at the appropriate times during the Meeting. Guests are able to listen to the Meeting but are not able to ask questions or vote at the Meeting.

To log in to the Meeting online visit www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/TGOD2022 on your smart phone, tablet or computer and check-in using the 16-digit control number included either on your Proxy or VIF, as applicable. You should ensure you have a strong, preferably high-speed, internet connection wherever you intend to participate in the Meeting. The Meeting will begin promptly at 11:00 am (Eastern Time) on Wednesday, June 29, 2022; however, we recommend that you access the Meeting site at least 30 minutes prior to the commencement of the Meeting and test your compatibility using the "Click Here" prompt and if necessary upgrade the media player on your device. You will be able to log in 15 minutes before the Meeting starts. To log in, click on one of the following choices:

Shareholders – enter the 16-digit control number located on your Proxy or VIF. Registered Shareholders and Beneficial Shareholders will be entitled to attend the meeting and ask questions, however, only Registered Shareholders and duly appointed Proxyholders will be able to vote at the Meeting; or

Proxyholders / **Appointees** – follow the instructions including entering the appointee name and appointee identification number as it was provided by the Shareholder and click on "Submit"; or

Guests – complete the online form. Guests may attend the meeting but will not be able to ask questions.

When successfully authenticated, the information screen will be displayed. You can view information about the Corporation, ask questions, vote (where applicable) and listen to the webcast.

Even if you plan to attend the Meeting, we recommend that you vote in advance, so that your vote will be counted if you later decide not to attend the Meeting.

Submitting Questions during the Meeting

We expect to hold, to the extent feasible and practical, a live question and answer session in connection with the Meeting. Registered Shareholders, duly appointed proxyholders and Beneficial Shareholders will be able to submit questions for the question and answer session. Questions can be submitted only during the Meeting in writing through the live webcast at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/TGOD2022 after logging in and typing your question into the "Ask a Question" field, and clicking "Submit".

We intend to answer properly submitted questions that are pertinent to the Corporation and Meeting matters, as time permits. Questions will be sent to be moderated before being sent to the Chair of the Meeting. The Corporation reserves the right to edit profanity or other inappropriate language, or to exclude questions that are not pertinent to Meeting matters or that are otherwise inappropriate.

Technical Assistance

If you encounter any technical difficulties accessing the virtual Meeting during the check-in or the Meeting, please use the phone number provided on the website.

Vote Counting

A representative of Broadridge will act as scrutineer at the Meeting and will count the votes.

Quorum

A Quorum at a meeting of Shareholders consists of two persons present at the Meeting, each being a Shareholder entitled to vote thereat, or a duly appointed proxy or proxyholder for an absent Shareholder so entitled, and together holding or representing by proxy not less than 5% of the outstanding Common Shares of the Corporation entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Notice to United States Shareholders

The solicitation of proxies is not subject to the requirements of Section 14(a) of the U.S. Exchange Act by virtue of an exemption applicable to proxy solicitations by foreign private issuers as defined in Rule 3b-4 of the U.S. Exchange Act. Accordingly, this Information Circular has been prepared in accordance with applicable Canadian disclosure requirements. Residents of the U.S. should be aware that such requirements differ from those of the United States applicable to proxy statements under the U.S. Exchange Act.

This document does not address any income tax consequences of the disposition of Common Shares by Shareholders. Shareholders in a jurisdiction outside of Canada should be aware that the disposition of shares by them may have tax consequences both in those jurisdictions and in Canada, and are urged to consult their tax advisors with respect to their particular circumstances and the tax considerations applicable to them.

Any information concerning any properties and operations of the Corporation has been prepared in accordance with Canadian standards under applicable Canadian securities laws and may not be comparable to similar information for U.S. companies.

Financial statements included or incorporated by reference herein have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and are subject to auditing and auditor independence standards in Canada. Such consequences for Shareholders who are resident in, or citizens of, the U.S. may not be described fully in this Information Circular.

The enforcement by Shareholders of civil liabilities under the U.S. federal securities laws may be affected adversely by the fact that the Corporation is incorporated or organized under the laws of a foreign country, that some or all of their officers and directors and the experts named herein are residents of a foreign country and that the major assets of the Corporation are located outside the U.S.

Revocation of Proxies

In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by law, a Registered Shareholder who has given a proxy may revoke it by:

- (a) voting again on the internet or telephone;
- (b) executing a proxy bearing a later date or by executing a valid notice of revocation, either of the foregoing to be executed by the Registered Shareholder or the Registered Shareholder's authorized attorney in writing, or, if the Shareholder is a corporation, under its corporate seal by an officer or attorney duly authorized, and by delivering the proxy bearing a later date to the Corporation, 6205 Airport Road, Building A-Suite 200, Mississauga, ON L4V 1E3, at any time up to 4:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) of the last Business Day that precedes the day of the Meeting or, if the Meeting is adjourned, the last Business Day that precedes any reconvening thereof, or to the chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or any reconvening thereof, or in any other manner provided by law; or
- (c) attending the Meeting online and voting the registered Shareholder's Common Shares in accordance with the instructions set out in section "Participation at the Meeting".

A revocation of a proxy will not affect a matter on which a vote is taken before the revocation. A Beneficial Shareholder who wishes to revoke their proxy should contact their Intermediary for instructions.

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS OR COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

No director or executive officer of the Corporation, nor any person who has held such a position since the beginning of the last completed financial year end of the Corporation, nor any proposed nominee for election as a director of the Corporation, nor any associate or affiliate of the foregoing persons, has any substantial or material interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of securities or otherwise, in any matter to be acted on at the Meeting other than the election of directors, the appointment of the auditor, and as otherwise set out herein.

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SECURITIES

The Board has fixed May 10, 2022 as the Record Date for determination of persons entitled to receive notice of the Meeting. Only Shareholders of record at the close of business on the Record Date who either attend the virtual Meeting or complete, sign and deliver a form of Proxy in the manner and subject to the provisions described above will be entitled to vote or to have their Common Shares voted at the Meeting.

As of the date hereof, there were 753,212,777 Common Shares issued and outstanding, each carrying the right to one vote. The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares without par value.

To the knowledge of the directors and executive officers of the Corporation, there are no persons or companies who beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or exercised control or direction over, Common Shares carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding Common Shares as of the date hereof.

PARTICULARS OF MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

Matters of business to be attended to at the Meeting are:

- 1. presentation of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 (see "*Financial Statements*");
- 2. setting the number of directors of the Corporation to be elected at eight (8) (see "Election of Directors");

- 3. election of directors of the Corporation who will serve until the end of the next annual shareholder meeting or until their successors are appointed (see "*Election of Directors*");
- 4. appointment of KPMG LLP as auditor of the Corporation for the ensuing year and to authorize directors to fix its remuneration (see "*Appointment of Auditor*");
- 5. consideration of and, if thought advisable, the passing of, with or without variation, a special resolution approving the Consolidation of all of the issued and outstanding Common Shares on the basis of a Consolidation ratio to be selected by the Board in its discretion, provided that the Consolidation ratio will be no greater than one (1) post-Consolidation Common Share for every ten (10) pre-Consolidation Common Shares (see "Approval of the Consolidation"); and
- 6. consideration of and, if thought advisable, the passing of, with or without variation, a special resolution approving the Name Change to change the name of the Corporation to such name as the Board, in their sole discretion and subject to applicable regulatory approval, determines to be appropriate (see "Approval of the Name Change").

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the financial year of the Corporation ended December 31, 2021, together with the report of the auditor thereon, and the management's discussion and analysis related thereto (together the "Annual Financials") will be available and placed before the Shareholders at the Meeting. Additional information relating to these documents may be obtained by a Shareholder upon request without charge from the Corporation at 6205 Airport Rd., Building A – Suite 200, Mississauga, Ontario L4V 1E3.

Copies of the Annual Financials are available under the Corporation's profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Articles require that the number of directors of the Corporation be a minimum of three (3) to a maximum of ten (10) directors. The Board presently consists of eight (8) directors, namely, Sean Bovingdon, Caroline MacCallum, Jacques Dessureault, Adam Jaffe, Olivier Dufourmantelle, Angus Footman, Louis Sterling III and Chris Schnarr. By resolution, the Board has determined that the number of directors to be elected by the Shareholders at this Meeting is to be set at eight (8). Accordingly, at the Meeting, Shareholders will be asked to fix the number of directors to be elected to the Board at eight (8).

The term of office of each of the current directors will end at the conclusion of the Meeting. Each of the nominated directors is eligible to serve as a director and has expressed his or her willingness to do so. Unless the director's office is vacated earlier in accordance with the provisions of the CBCA, directors who are elected will serve until the end of the next annual meeting of Shareholders, or until a successor is elected or appointed.

The following disclosure sets out the names of management's nominees for election as directors, all major offices and positions with the Corporation or any of its significant affiliates each now holds, each nominee's principal occupation, business or employment (for the five preceding years), the period of time during which each has been a director and the number of securities beneficially owned by each, directly or indirectly, or over which each exercised control or direction, as at May 17, 2022. The information as to the present principal occupation, business or employment is not within the knowledge of the Corporation and has been furnished by the respective nominees.

ANGUS FOOTMAN Director

Principal Occupation and Biographical Information



Age: 58 Non-Independent(1) Hillsburgh, Ontario

Mr. Footman was appointed a director on November 17, 2021. appointment, he was the co-founder and Chief Executive Officer of Galaxie Brands Corporation ("Galaxie") since November 2020, prior to it becoming a subsidiary of the Corporation. Mr. Footman was the founder of Park Lane Farms ("Park Lane"), one of the first legal producers of medical cannabis products in Canada. Mr. Footman sold Park Lane to Canopy Growth Corporation ("Canopy Growth") in 2014 and served as the managing director and president of Tweed Farms (formerly Park Lane) until 2018. Mr. Footman then assumed leadership of Canopy Growth's animal health division, a leader in animal cannabinoid research. Previously, Mr. Footman held executive and board roles in technology, engineering and natural resources firms. He has a degree in business from the University of Guelph.

Director Since: November 2021

Current Board/Committee Membership ⁽²⁾	Other Public Board Memberships
Member of the Board	None.
Member of the Compensation Committee	
Number of Securities Beneficially Owned, Controlled or Directed ⁽³⁾	33,852,400 ⁽⁴⁾
Meets Share Ownership Guidelines	Complies

Notes:

- Mr. Footman is considered a non-independent director as he was the former Chief Executive Officer of Galaxie Brands Corporation, prior to it becoming a subsidiary of the Corporation.
- Mr. Footman was appointed to the Board on November 17, 2021. Mr. Footman was appointed to the Compensation Committee on November 17, 2021.
- (3) Represents Common Shares, Options, RSUs and any other convertible securities, on a fully diluted basis.
- Mr. Footman holds an aggregate of 31,802,400 Common Shares indirectly through Aoco Ventures Inc. As at the date of this Information Circular, Mr. Footman also holds Options exercisable into an aggregate of 2,000,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to receive 50,000 Common Shares.

SEAN BOVINGDON **Chief Executive Officer & Director**

Principal Occupation and Biographical Information Currently, Mr. Bovingdon is the CEO of the Corporation. He joined the Corporation in

October 2018 as CFO, and was appointed interim CEO in November 2020, and a director of the Corporation on March 9, 2021. Mr. Bovingdon has over 25 years of executive experience across a multitude of private and public companies and industries, including most recently, as CFO of Toronto Hydro Corporation (\$3.5 billion annual revenue). He has served as President & CFO of public and private international oil and gas companies, CFO for TSX listed technology and manufacturing companies, and Controller for a major TSX listed oil company. He has significant experience in capital strategy, M&A, building teams in growth companies, and has been involved in over \$3 billion of equity and debt financings, including three IPOs. He holds a BA (Hons) in Accounting and Economics and is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants



Age: 55 Non-Independent⁽¹⁾ Ontario, Canada

Director Since: March 2021

Current Board/Committee Weinbership	Other Public Board Memberships
Member of the Board	None.
Number of Securities Beneficially Owned, Controlled or Directed ⁽²⁾	5,574,640 ⁽³⁾
Meets Share Ownership Guidelines ⁽⁴⁾	Complies
	·

Notes:

Mr. Bovingdon is considered a non-independent director as he is the current Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. (1)

in England and Wales.

- Represents Common Shares, Options and any other convertible securities, on a fully diluted basis. (2)
- Mr. Bovingdon holds an aggregate of 254,640 Common Shares. As at the date of this Information Circular, Mr. Bovingdon also holds Options exercisable (3) into an aggregate of 5,230,000 Common Shares, and warrants exercisable into an aggregate of 90,000 Common Shares
- (4) Pursuant to the Corporation's Share Ownership Guidelines (as defined herein), Mr. Bovingdon has five years from the date of his appointment to establish the required level of shareholdings.

CAROLINE MACCALLUM

Director

Principal Occupation and Biographical Information



Age: 39
Independent
British Columbia, Canada

Director Since: January 2019

Dr. MacCallum was appointed a director of the Corporation on January 7, 2019. Since 2013, Dr. MacCallum has specialized in internal medicine with expertise in complex pain and cannabinoid medicine. She is a clinical instructor in the Department of Medicine; Adjunct Professor in the Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences Program, and Associate Member in the Department of Palliative Care at the University of British Columbia. Since 2015, she has been the Medical Director at Greenleaf Medical Clinic where she has assessed and developed cannabinoid treatment plans for more than 5,000 patients using legal medical cannabis approved by Health Canada.

Dr. MacCallum has presented internationally on the topic of cannabis dosing, safety and polypharmacy reduction/substitution. She has qualified as a medical cannabis expert and testified in arbitration for a claim involving a challenge to Health Canada's 24-hour rule for cannabis impairment. Dr. MacCallum is currently working with university research groups, hospitals, health benefit programs, provincial and national committees to create guidelines, safe prescribing practices, clinical trials, patient registries and adverse event monitoring. She graduated from the College of Physicians and Surgeons of British Columbia in June 2009 and then subsequently graduated from the Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians of Canada in June 2013.

Current Board/Committee Membership	Other Public Board Memberships
Member of the Board	None.
Member of the CGN Committee ⁽¹⁾	
Number of Securities Beneficially Owned, Controlled or Directed ⁽²⁾	1,575,711 ⁽³⁾
Meets Share Ownership Guidelines ⁽⁴⁾	Complies

Notes:

- (1) Dr. MacCallum was appointed to the CGN Committee on April 5, 2022.
- (2) Represents Common Shares, Options, RSUs and any other convertible securities, on a fully diluted basis.
- Dr. MacCallum holds an aggregate of 8,211 Common Shares. As at the date of this Information Circular, Dr. MacCallum also holds Options exercisable into an aggregate of 1,510,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling her to receive 57,500 Common Shares.
- (4) Pursuant to the Corporation's Share Ownership Guidelines, Dr. MacCallum has five years from the date of his appointment to establish the required level of shareholdings.

JACQUES DESSUREAULT Lead Director

Principal Occupation and Biographical Information



Age: 58
Independent
Quebec, Canada

Mr. Dessureault was appointed a director of the Corporation on January 7, 2019. Mr. Dessureault has over 25 years experience in the pharmaceutical, medical devices, natural health, and the bio technology industries, with 15 years engaged in general management roles leading commercial organisations including research and development, international manufacturing and technical operations. Since 2017, he has been a director on boards of companies in innovative emerging industries and technologies.

Mr. Dessureault is currently Chairman of Optina Diagnostics, part of the Management Committee of The Rosalind & Morris Goodman Family Pediatric Formulations Centre of the CHU Sainte-Justine, and is a director of two private boards. Mr. Dessureault holds bachelor's degree from l'Ecole des science de la gestion (ESG), a Master's degree in Marketing Science from the Leicester University in the UK and is a Charted Administrator (C Dir.) with a dual designation from Laval and McMaster University.

Director Since: January 2019

Current Board/Con	Other Public Board Memberships	
Lead Director of the Board	None.	
Member of the Audit Committee		
Chair of the Compensation Committee		
Number of Securities Beneficially Owned, Controlled or Directed ⁽²⁾		2,768,789(3)
Meets Share Own	Complies	

- Mr. Dessureault was appointed as Lead Director and Chair of the Compensation Committee on December 21, 2021. Mr. Dessureault was appointed to the Audit Committee on March 8, 2021, resigned on June 29, 2021 and then reappointed to the Audit Committee on December 20, 2021. Mr. Dessureault was appointed Chair of CGN and then subsequently resigned as the Chair of CGN on April 5, 2022.
- Represents Common Shares, Options, RSUs and any other convertible securities, on a fully diluted basis.
- Mr. Dessureault holds an aggregate of 630,039 Common Shares. As at the date of this Information Circular, Mr. Dessureault also holds Options exercisable into an aggregate of 2,110,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to receive 28,750 Common Shares.
- (4) Pursuant to the Corporation's Share Ownership Guidelines, Mr. Dessureault has five years from the date of his appointment to establish the required level of shareholdings.

ADAM JAFFE

Director

Principal Occupation and Biographical Information



Age: 31
Independent
New York, U.S.A

Director Since: June 2021

Mr. Jaffe was appointed a director of the Corporation on June 29, 2021. Mr. Adam Jaffe currently serves as Chief Financial Officer of Legato Merger Corp. II (NASDAQ:LGTO), helping lead its USD\$276 million initial public offering in November 2021, and Chief Financial Officer of Allegro Merger Corp. (formerly NASDAQ:ALGR), helping lead its USD\$150 million initial public offering in July 2018. For Legato Merger Corp. II ("Legato II") and Allegro Merger Corp., Mr. Jaffe is responsible for performing financial and accounting due diligence on private target companies and is also responsible for Legato II's public filings. Mr. Jaffe also served as Chief Financial Officer of Legato Merger Corp from its formation in June 2020 until its merger with Algoma Steel Group, Inc., in October 2021. He also serves as Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer of Crescendo Partners, L.P. and Jamarant Capital, L.P. since 2018, where he is responsible for financial modelling, investor relations, tax and annual audit, in addition to regulatory and compliance reporting. Mr. Jaffe is a certified Public Accountant in the state of New York. Mr. Jaffe received his accounting degree with a concentration in Finance from Penn State University.

Current Board/Committee Membership ⁽¹⁾	Other Public Board Memberships
Member of the Board	None.
Member of the Audit Committee	
Number of Securities Beneficially Owned, Controlled or Directed ⁽²⁾	1,000,000(3)
Meets Share Ownership Guidelines ⁽⁴⁾	Complies

Notes

- (1) Mr. Jaffe was appointed to the Board and became a member of the Audit Committee on June 29, 2021.
- (2) Represents Options and any other convertible securities, on a fully diluted basis.
- (3) As at the date of this Information Circular, Mr. Jaffe holds Options exercisable into an aggregate of 1,000,000 Common Shares.
- (4) Pursuant to the Corporation's Share Ownership Guidelines, Mr. Jaffe has five years from the date of his appointment to establish the required level of shareholdings.

OLIVIER DUFOURMANTELLE Director

Principal Occupation and Biographical Information



Age: 42 Non-Independent⁽¹⁾ Ottawa, Ontario

Director Since: November 2021

Mr. Dufourmantelle was appointed a Director and President, US Operations of the Corporation on November 17, 2021. Mr. Dufourmantelle was the co-founder and President of Galaxie since November 2020 and continues to be President of Galaxie, now a subsidiary of the Corporation. He has held roles of Chief Operating Officer of Canopy Growth and Canopy Rivers. Prior to joining Canopy Growth, Mr. Dufourmantelle worked in various leadership and consulting roles in Asia, Europe, and North America at Michelin Tires and McKinsey & Company. He received a degree in Electrical Engineering at McGill University and holds an MBA from Harvard Business School. In addition, he is also a certified Professional Engineer.

Current Board/Committee Membership ⁽²⁾	Other Public Board Memberships
Member of the Board	None.
Number of Securities Beneficially Owned, Controlled or Directed ⁽³⁾	33,852,400 ⁽⁴⁾
Meets Share Ownership Guidelines	Complies

- (1) Mr. Dufourmantelle is considered a non-independent director as he is the President of US Operations of the Corporation, and was the former President of Galaxie Brands Corporation, prior to it becoming a subsidiary of the Corporation.
- (2) Mr. Dufourmantelle was appointed to the Board on November 17, 2021. He was also appointed to the CGN Committee on December 20, 2021 but has since resigned effective April 5, 2022.
- (3) Represents Common Shares, Options, RSUs and any other convertible securities, on a fully diluted basis.
- Mr. Dufourmantelle holds an aggregate of 31,802,400 Common Shares indirectly through Aoco Ventures Inc. As at the date of this Information Circular, Mr. Dufourmantelle also holds Options exercisable into an aggregate of 2,000,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to receive 50,000 Common Shares

LOUIS STERLING III Director

Principal Occupation and Biographical Information



Age: 43
Independent
California, U.S.A
Director Since: December 2021

Mr. Sterling III was appointed a director of the Corporation on December 20, 2021. With over 20 years of financial services experience, Mr. Sterling has been a private investor targeting small-cap public equities and select fast-growth private companies, particularly in the health, wellness, and cannabis industries. Prior to this, he was a managing director of BondFactor, a firm specializing in insuring municipal bonds. A graduate from Harvard Law School, Mr. Sterling also holds an MBA from Harvard Business School, an undergraduate degree from Howard University, and has extensive experience in investment banking and private equity, having worked at Lincolnshire Management and Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Current Board/Committee Membership ⁽¹⁾	Other Public Board Memberships
Member of the Board	None.
Member of the Compensation Committee	
Chair of the CGN Committee	
Number of Securities Beneficially Owned, Controlled or Directed ⁽²⁾	1,015,418 ⁽³⁾
Meets Share Ownership Guidelines ⁽⁴⁾	Complies

Notes:

- (1) Mr. Sterling was appointed as a member of the Board and a member of the Compensation Committee and the CGN Committee on December 20, 2021. Mr. Sterling became Chair of the CGN Committee on April 5, 2022.
- (2) Represents Common Shares, Options and any other convertible securities, on a fully diluted basis.
- Mr. Sterling hold an aggregate of 15,418 Common Shares. As at the date of this Information Circular, Mr. Sterling also holds Options exercisable into an aggregate of 1,000,000 Common Shares.
- (4) Pursuant to the Corporation's Share Ownership Guidelines, Mr. Sterling has five years from the date of his appointment to establish the required level of shareholdings.

CHRIS SCHNARR Director

Principal Occupation and Biographical Information

Mr. Schnarr was appointed to the Board of the Corporation on January 24, 2022. Mr. Schnarr is an entrepreneur with over 30 years of experience, including founding,



Age: 55
Independent
Mississauga, Ontario

managing, and advising growth companies with respect to strategy, corporate finance, sales and marketing, operations, corporate development, M&A, and governance across a cannabis, healthcare, software and pharma/biotech industries, in both the private and public realm. A graduate of the Director's Education Program at Rotman School of Business and holder of the ICD.D designation, Mr. Schnarr's board experience spans 10 public companies and three private companies. He has extensive committee experience, including Audit, Governance, and Compensation, having chaired Canopy Growth's audit committee for four years.

Director Since: January 2022

Current Board/Committee Membership ⁽¹⁾	Other Public Board Memberships
Member of the Board	Highmark Interactive Inc.
Chair of the Audit Committee	Vitalhub Corp.
Member of the CGN Committee	
Number of Securities Beneficially Owned, Controlled or Directed ⁽²⁾	1,300,000(3)
Meets Share Ownership Guidelines ⁽⁴⁾	Complies

- (1) Mr. Schnarr was appointed to the Board and a member of the Audit Committee and the CGN Committee on January 24, 2022. Mr. Schnarr became Chair of the Audit Committee on April 5, 2022.
- (2) Represents Options and any other convertible securities, on a fully diluted basis.
- (3) As at the date of this Information Circular, Mr. Schnarr holds Options exercisable into an aggregate of 1,300,000 Common Shares.
- (4) Pursuant to the Corporation's Share Ownership Guidelines, Mr. Schnarr has five years from the date of his appointment to establish the required level of shareholdings.

None of the proposed nominees for election as a director of the Corporation are proposed for election pursuant to any arrangement or understanding between the nominee and any other person, except the directors and senior officers of the Corporation acting solely in such capacity.

A Shareholder can vote for all of the above nominees, vote for some of the above nominees and withhold for other of the above nominees, or withhold for all of the above nominees. Unless otherwise instructed, the named proxyholders will vote FOR the election of each of the proposed nominees set forth above as directors of the Corporation. At the Meeting the above persons will be nominated for election as director.

If for any reason any of the proposed nominees does not stand for election or is unable to serve as such, the management designees, if named as proxy, reserve the right to vote for any other nominee in their sole discretion unless you have specified in your proxy that your Common Shares are to be withheld from voting on the proposed nominee who does not stand for election.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT EACH SHAREHOLDER VOTE "FOR" THE ELECTION OF THE ABOVE NOMINEES AS DIRECTORS.

Majority Voting Policy

The Majority Voting Policy applies to the election of directors. Under the Majority Voting Policy, a director who is elected with more votes withheld than cast in favour of his or her election will be required to tender his or her resignation to the Chairman of the Board. The resignation will be effective when accepted by the Board and the nominee director will not participate in any committee or Board meetings or deliberations on this matter. The Majority Voting Policy does not apply in circumstances involving contested director elections.

The CGN Committee will consider the resignation and make a recommendation to the Board on whether the resignation should be accepted. In considering the recommendation of the CGN Committee, the Board will consider the factors taken into account by the committee and such additional information and factors that the Board considers to be relevant. The Board expects that resignations will be accepted unless there are extenuating circumstances that warrant a contrary decision.

If the resignation is accepted, subject to any applicable law, the Board may leave the resultant vacancy unfilled until the next annual meeting of Shareholders, fill the vacancy through the appointment of a new director, or call a special meeting of Shareholders at which there will be presented one or more nominees to fill any vacancy or vacancies.

Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties and Sanctions

To the knowledge of the Corporation, no proposed director is, as at the date of this Information Circular, or has been, within the last 10 years before the date of this Information Circular, a director, or executive officer of any company (including the Corporation) that was:

- (a) subject to a cease trade order, an order similar to a cease trade order or an order that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation, and which in all cases was in effect for a period of more than 30 consecutive days (an "Order"), which Order was issued while the proposed director was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of such company; or
- (b) subject to an Order that was issued after the proposed director ceased to be a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer and which resulted from an event that occurred while that person was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or financial officer of such company.

Other than as set out below, to the knowledge of the Corporation, no proposed director:

- (a) is, as at the date of this Information Circular, or has been within 10 years before the date of this Information Circular, a director or executive officer of any company (including the Corporation) that, while that person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement, or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets;
- (b) has, within 10 years before the date of this Information Circular, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager, or trustee appointed to hold its assets;
- (c) has been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority; or
- (d) has been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a reasonable securityholder in deciding whether to vote for a proposed director.

Mr. Bovingdon served as the Chief Financial Officer of Argent Energy Ltd. (the "Administrator"), the administrator of Argent Energy Trust (the "Trust"), from June 2011 until August 2016 and he also served as President of the Administrator from April 2015 until August 2016. The units of the Trust were listed on the TSX. On February 17, 2016, the Trust sought and obtained protection under the CCAA. On August 30, 2016, the Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta entered an Order, among other things, terminating the CCAA proceeding for the Trust effective August 31, 2016. On August 31, 2016, the Trust made an assignment into bankruptcy, and on vesting of the Trust's assets with the bankruptcy trustee, the Trust was deemed to be terminated by operation of law. During the CCAA proceedings, certain securities commissions in Canada (including the Alberta Securities Commission, the British Columbia Securities Commission, the Manitoba Securities Commission, and the OSC) issued cease trade orders against the Trust for failing to file interim and annual financial statements. In addition, the Trust units and convertible debentures of the Trust were delisted from the TSX effective at the close of market on March 24, 2016 for failure of the Trust to meet the continued listing requirements of the TSX.

Mr. Dufourmantelle served as the Chief Operating Officer of Canopy Rivers Inc. ("RIV"), a venture capital firm investing in cannabis start-up companies, from May 2017 to November 2020. As the only executive with security clearance by Health Canada at RIV, Mr. Dufourmantelle became a director of Pharmhouse Corp ("Pharmhouse"). Pharmhouse owned a large, licensed cannabis greenhouse that got confronted by the overcapacity of the Canadian cannabis flower market and the precipitous and unforeseen drop in cannabis flower prices. As a result, Pharmhouse was unable to generate enough revenue to cover its costs and debt servicing obligations, and as a result, in September 2020, Pharmhouse entered into CCAA proceedings.

Mr. Schnarr was formerly a director and an officer of BioExx Specialty Proteins Ltd. and its subsidiaries ("**BioExx**"), from March 2006 to August 2013 which was formerly listed on the TSX. Mr. Schnarr resigned from the board of directors and as an officer of BioExx and its subsidiaries on August 28, 2013. On October 1, 2013, BioExx commenced proceedings under CCAA. On the same date, the trading of BioExx's shares on the TSX was halted. On November 6, 2013 the shares of BioExx were delisted from the TSX.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

At the Meeting, Shareholders will be called upon to nominate and reappoint the firm of KPMG LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, Suite 1400, 100 New Park Place, Vaughan, Ontario L4K 0J3 as

auditor of the Corporation to serve until the close of the next annual general meeting of shareholders, at a remuneration to be fixed by the directors. KPMG LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, was first appointed as auditor of the Corporation on June 11, 2018.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMEND THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE APPOINTMENT OF KPMG LLP, CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS, AS THE CORPORATION'S AUDITOR, AT A REMUNERATION TO BE FIXED BY THE DIRECTORS.

Unless otherwise directed, it is the intention of the management designees to vote the proxies in favour of an ordinary resolution to appoint the firm of KPMG LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, to serve as auditor until the next annual meeting of the shareholders and to authorize the directors to fix its remuneration as such.

The information required by Form 52-110F1 of National Instrument 52-110 – *Audit Committees* ("NI 52-110") of the Canadian Securities Administrators, including information regarding the fees billed to the Corporation by KPMG LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, Vaughn, Ontario, is contained in the annual information form of the Corporation dated April 18, 2022 for the year ended December 31, 2021, under the heading "Audit Committee Information", an electronic copy of which is available on the Corporation's SEDAR profile at www.sedar.com.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATION

At the Meeting, Shareholders will be asked to consider, and if deemed advisable, to pass, with or without variation, a special resolution substantially in the form noted below to approve an amendment to the Articles to effect the consolidation of all of the issued and outstanding Common Shares on the basis of the Consolidation ratio to be selected by the Board in its discretion, provided that the Consolidation ratio will be no greater than one (1) post-Consolidation Common Share for every ten (10) pre-Consolidation Common Shares (the "Consolidation Resolution").

In order to be effective, the Consolidation Resolution must be approved, with or without variation, by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes cast by Shareholders, present virtually or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Meeting. If the Consolidation Resolution does not receive the requisite Shareholder approval, the Corporation will not proceed with the Consolidation. In addition to the requisite Shareholder approval being sought at the Meeting, the Consolidation also requires approval of all applicable regulatory authorities, including the CSE. Approval by Shareholders of the Consolidation Resolution does not mean the Corporation will in fact proceed with the Consolidation, and the Board will have discretion in determining whether or not to complete the Consolidation.

If the Board decides to proceed with the Consolidation, a letter of transmittal will be mailed to Registered Shareholders, to be used by Shareholders to exchange their current share certificates for certificates reflecting the Consolidation. No action is required by Beneficial Shareholders, who hold securities of the Corporation through an Intermediary, to effect the Consolidation of their beneficially held securities. A news release will also be issued announcing the effective date of the Consolidation.

Effects of the Consolidation

If the Consolidation is approved and implemented, all of the Common Shares will be consolidated and all holders of the Common Shares will be affected equally. In addition, there may be a minimal effect on a Shareholder's percentage ownership interest in the Corporation resulting from the proposed treatment of fractional Common Shares. Each Common Share outstanding post-Consolidation will be entitled to one (1) vote at each meeting of Shareholders. The principal effects of the Share Consolidation will be: (a) assuming the Consolidation ratio of one (1) post-Consolidation Common Share for every ten (10) pre-Consolidation Common Shares, the number of Common Shares issued and outstanding will be reduced from 753,212,777 Common Shares as of the date hereof to no greater than 75,321,277 Common Shares post-Consolidation;

and (b) the exercise or conversion price and/or the number of Common Shares issuable under any of the Corporation's outstanding convertible securities, stock options, RSUs, and warrants will be proportionally adjusted upon the Consolidation based on the applicable Consolidation ratio.

In no event will any Shareholder be entitled to a fractional post-Consolidation Common Shares. Where the aggregate number of post-Consolidation Common Shares to be issued to a Shareholder pursuant to the Consolidation would result in a fraction of a post-Consolidation Common Share being issuable, the number of post-Consolidation Common Shares to be received by such Shareholder will be rounded down to the nearest whole post-Consolidation Common Share and any fractional post-Consolidation Common Shares arising from the Consolidation of the Common Shares will be deemed to have been tendered by its registered owner to the Corporation for cancellation for no consideration.

The complete text of the Consolidation Resolution, which management intends to place before the Meeting for approval, confirmation and adoption, with or without modification, is as follows:

"BE IT RESOLVED, as a special resolution, that:

- 1. the articles of The Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd. (the "Corporation") shall be amended to provide that: (i) the authorized capital of the Corporation is altered by consolidating all of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Corporation (the "Common Shares") on the basis of a consolidation ratio to be selected by the board of directors of the Corporation (the "Board") in its discretion, provided that the consolidation ratio shall be no greater than one (1) post-consolidation Common Share for every ten (10) pre-consolidation Common Shares (the "Consolidation"); (ii) any fractional Common Shares arising from the Consolidation of the Common Shares shall be deemed to have been tendered by its registered owner to the Corporation for cancellation for no consideration;
- 2. any director or officer of the Corporation be, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed for and in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation to execute and deliver or cause to be executed and delivered articles of amendment of the Corporation to the director under the *Canada Business Corporations Act* and to execute and deliver or cause to be executed and delivered all documents and to take any action which, in the opinion of that person, is necessary or desirable to give effect to this special resolution;
- 3. notwithstanding that this resolution has been duly passed by the shareholders of the Corporation, the Board is hereby authorized and empowered, if it decides not to proceed with the aforementioned resolution, to revoke this resolution at any time, without further notice to, or approval of, the shareholders of the Corporation; and
- 4. any director or officer of the Corporation is hereby authorized, for and on behalf and in the name of the Corporation, to execute and deliver, whether under corporate seal of the Corporation or otherwise, the articles of amendment reflecting the Consolidation and all such agreements, forms, waivers, notices, certificates, confirmations and other documents and instruments and to do or cause to be done all such other acts and things, as in the opinion of such director or officer may be necessary, desirable or useful for the purpose of giving effect to the foregoing resolutions and the matters authorized thereby, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of such document, agreement or instrument or the doing of any such act or thing."

THE BOARD BELIEVES THAT THE CONSOLIDATION IS IN THE CORPORATION'S BEST INTERESTS AND UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATION RESOLUTION. COMMON SHARES REPRESENTED BY PROXIES IN FAVOUR OF MANAGEMENT NOMINEES WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF THE CONSOLIDATION RESOLUTION, UNLESS THE SHAREHOLDER HAS

SPECIFIED IN THE PROXY THAT HIS, HER OR ITS COMMON SHARES ARE TO BE WITHHELD FROM VOTING IN RESPECT THEREOF.

APPROVAL OF THE NAME CHANGE

At the Meeting, Shareholders will be asked to consider, and if deemed advisable, to pass, with or without variation, a special resolution (the "Name Change Resolution") substantially in the form noted below authorizing the Board to elect, in its discretion, to direct the Corporation to file articles of amendment to effect the Name Change from "The Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd." to such name as the Board deems appropriate and as may be approved by applicable regulatory authorities.

In order to be effective, the Name Change Resolution must be approved, with or without variation, by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes cast by Shareholders, present virtually or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Meeting. If the Name Change Resolution does not receive the requisite Shareholder approval, the Corporation will not proceed with the Name Change. In addition to the requisite Shareholder approval being sought at the Meeting, the Name Change also requires approval of all applicable regulatory authorities, including the CSE. Approval by Shareholders of the Name Change Resolution does not mean the Corporation will in fact proceed with the Name Change, and the Board will have discretion in determining whether or not to complete the Name Change.

In connection with the Name Change, the Corporation will apply to change its trading symbol on the CSE from "TGOD" to such other trading symbol as the Board deems appropriate and as may be approved by applicable regulatory authorities, including the CSE. A change to the Corporation's name or trading symbol will not by itself affect in any way the validity of currently outstanding Common Shares of the Corporation or the trading of the Corporation's other securities.

If the Name Change Resolution is approved by Shareholders as set out below, and the Board determines to proceed with the Name Change, the Corporation will, as soon as practicable thereafter, file an amendment to its articles with Corporations Canada to give effect to the Name Change, and a letter of transmittal will be mailed to Registered Shareholders, to be used by Shareholders to exchange their current share certificates for certificates reflecting the Name Change. No action is required by Beneficial Shareholders, who hold securities of the Corporation through an Intermediary, to effect the Name Change of their beneficially held securities. A news release will also be issued announcing the new name and trading symbol of the Corporation once determined by the Board and approved by applicable regulatory authorities, as well as the effective date of the Name Change.

The complete text of the Name Change Resolution, which management intends to place before the Meeting for approval, confirmation and adoption, with or without modification, is as follows:

"BE IT RESOLVED, as a special resolution, that:

- 1. the articles of The Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd. (the "Corporation") shall be amended to change the name of "The Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd." to such name that the board of directors of the Corporation (the "Board") deems appropriate and as may be approved by applicable regulatory authorities (the "Name Change"), such amendment to become effective at a date in the future to be determined by the Board in its sole discretion if and when the Board considers it to be in the best interests of the Corporation to implement such a Name Change, all as more fully described in the management information circular of the Corporation dated May 17, 2022 (the "Circular"), and subject to all necessary regulatory approvals;
- 2. any director or officer of the Corporation be, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed for and in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation to execute and deliver or cause to be executed and delivered articles of amendment of the Corporation to the director under the *Canada Business Corporations Act* and to execute and deliver or cause to be

executed and delivered all documents and to take any action which, in the opinion of that person, is necessary or desirable to give effect to this special resolution;

- 3. notwithstanding that this resolution has been duly passed by the shareholders of the Corporation, the Board is hereby authorized and empowered, if it decides not to proceed with the aforementioned resolution, to revoke this resolution at any time, without further notice to, or approval of, the shareholders of the Corporation; and
- 4. any director or officer of the Corporation is hereby authorized, for and on behalf and in the name of the Corporation, to execute and deliver, whether under corporate seal of the Corporation or otherwise, the articles of amendment reflecting the Name Change and all such agreements, forms, waivers, notices, certificates, confirmations and other documents and instruments and to do or cause to be done all such other acts and things, as in the opinion of such director or officer may be necessary, desirable or useful for the purpose of giving effect to the foregoing resolutions and the matters authorized thereby, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of such document, agreement or instrument or the doing of any such act or thing."

THE BOARD BELIEVES THAT THE NAME CHANGE IS IN THE CORPORATION'S BEST INTERESTS AND UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE APPROVAL OF THE NAME CHANGE RESOLUTION. COMMON SHARES REPRESENTED BY PROXIES IN FAVOUR OF MANAGEMENT NOMINEES WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF THE NAME CHANGE RESOLUTION, UNLESS THE SHAREHOLDER HAS SPECIFIED IN THE PROXY THAT HIS, HER OR ITS COMMON SHARES ARE TO BE WITHHELD FROM VOTING IN RESPECT THEREOF.

COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This section provides details regarding the Corporation's approach to executive compensation by outlining the processes and decisions supporting the determination of the amounts the Corporation paid to its Named Executive Officers. While this discussion relates to the Named Executive Officers, the other executives of the Corporation participate in the same plans and are subject to a similar process.

Elements of Compensation

The Corporation's compensation strategy is designed to attract and retain leaders and employees who have the requisite skills and aligned values to serve a diverse workforce. Our strategy ensures that the Corporation is achieving internal, external and individual equity for all employees. It is not our intention to be the industry leader of competitive salaries; however, the Corporation's goal is to be competitive within the industry through the offering of a total compensation program that enhances the overall performance for both the employee and the Corporation.

The Board's responsibilities relating to the compensation and retention of executive officers include, but are not limited to:

- setting policies for remuneration of executive officers;
- reviewing the recommendations of the Compensation Committee and approving of salary, equity, bonus, and other benefits, direct or indirect, and any change-of-control packages of the CEO;
- considering recommendations of the CEO and Compensation Committee and setting the terms and conditions of employment including, approving the salary, equity, bonus, and other benefits, direct or indirect, and any change-of-control packages, of the executive officers of the Corporation; and

 overseeing the administration of the Corporation's compensation plans, including its Option Plan, RSU Plan, and such other compensation plans or structures as are adopted by the Corporation from time to time.

The following executive compensation principles guide the Board in fulfilling its roles and responsibilities in the design and ongoing administration of the Corporation's executive compensation program:

- compensation levels and opportunities must be market competitive to attract and retain qualified and experienced executives, while being fair and reasonable to Shareholders;
- compensation must incorporate an appropriate balance of short and long-term rewards; and
- compensation programs must align executives' long-term financial interests with those of Shareholders by providing equity-based incentives.

The Corporation's executive compensation program is designed to encourage, compensate and reward employees on the basis of individual and corporate performance, both in the short and the long term. For NEOs, the compensation program is designed to provide a larger portion of variable incentives tied to corporate performance. NEO compensation includes base salary, benefits, and long-term incentives. Salaries are a base level of compensation designed to attract and retain executive officers with the appropriate skills and experience. Grants through the Corporation's long-term incentive plans are designed to provide incentives to increase shareholder value over the longer term and thereby better align executive compensation with the interests of Shareholders. Perquisites and benefits do not comprise of a significant part of our NEO's overall compensation.

The compensation of Named Executive Officers is comprised of the following elements: (a) base salary; (b) option-based and share-based awards granted under the Corporation's Option Plan and RSU Plan; and (c) short-term incentive ("STI") and long-term incentive ("LTI") bonus program. These principal elements of compensation are described in further detail below.

1. Base Salary

A NEO's base salary is intended to remunerate the NEO for executing job responsibilities and reflects the executive's performance over time. Individual salary adjustments take into account performance contributions in connection with an executive's specific duties. The base salary of each executive officer is determined by the Board based on an assessment by the Board of his or her sustained performance and consideration of competitive compensation levels for the markets in which the Corporation operates. In making its determinations, the Board also considers the particular skills and experience of the individual. A final determination on executive compensation, including salary, is made by the Board in its sole discretion and its knowledge of the industry and geographic markets in which the Corporation operates. The Board does not use any type of quantitative formula to determine the base salary level of any of the NEOs.

Base salaries are reviewed annually to ensure that they properly reflect a balance of market conditions, the levels of responsibility and accountability of each individual, their unique experience, skills and capability and level of sustained performance.

2. Option-Based and Share-Based Awards

The Corporation's current Option Plan and RSU Plan permit the granting of Options and RSUs by the Board or the compensation committee of the Board (the "Compensation Committee"). The aggregate maximum number of Common Shares that may be issued upon the exercise or settlement of Options or RSUs granted under the Option Plan, the RSU Plan, shall not exceed 10% of the Corporation's issued and

outstanding Common Shares from time to time, such number being 753, 212,777 as at the date of this Information Circular. The Option Plan is considered an "evergreen" plan, since the Common Shares covered by awards which have been exercised, settled or terminated shall be available for subsequent grants under the Option Plan and the number of awards available to grant increases as the number of issued and outstanding Common Shares increases. A copy of the Option Plan and RSU Plan are available on the Corporation's profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

The Option Plan and RSU Plan are intended to promote the interests of the Corporation and its Shareholders by aiding the Corporation in attracting and retaining employees, officers, consultants, advisors and non-employee directors capable of assuring the future success of the Corporation, to offer such persons incentives to put forth maximum efforts for the success of the Corporation's business and to compensate such persons through various share and cash-based arrangements and provide them with opportunities for share ownership in the Corporation, thereby aligning the interests of such persons with Shareholders. Grants under the Option Plan and RSU Plan provide long-term awards linked directly to the market value performance of the Corporation's Common Shares. The Board or the Compensation Committee, as applicable, review management's recommendations and Options and RSUs are granted according to the specific level of responsibility of the Named Executive Officer.

3. STI & LTI Bonus Program

In addition to base salary, each Named Executive Officer may receive an annual discretionary bonus. Annual bonuses may be awarded by the Board based on qualitative and quantitative corporate and individual performance standards, and are intended to reward performance of Named Executive Officers individually as well as Named Executive Officers based on the Corporation's attainment of stated targets and objectives for the fiscal year. The determination of a Named Executive Officer's performance may vary from year to year depending on economic conditions, and may be based on measures such as stock price performance, the meeting of financial targets against budget (such as adjusted funds from operations), the meeting of acquisition objectives and balance sheet performance. Cash and equity will be awarded for bonus program achievement. Specifically, the STI bonus will award cash and the LTI bonus will award either RSUs or Options for FY 2022 bonus target achievements.

Compensation Risk

The Board and, as applicable, the Compensation Committee, has assessed the Corporation's compensation plans for its Named Executive Officers to ensure alignment with the Corporation's compensation policies and business plan and to evaluate the potential risks associated with these plans and programs. The Corporation's practice of compensating its Named Executive Officers primarily through a mix of salary, bonus, Options and RSUs is designed to mitigate risk by: (i) ensuring that the Corporation retains such officers; and (ii) aligning the interests of its officers with the short-term and long-term objectives of the Corporation and its shareholders. As at the date of this Information Circular, the Board had not identified risks arising from the Corporation's compensation policies and practices that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Corporation.

Financial Instruments

Pursuant to the terms of the Corporation's Anti-Hedging Policy, the Corporation's officers and directors are prohibited from purchasing financial instruments, such as prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars or units of exchange funds, that are designed to hedge or offset a decrease in market value of equity securities granted as compensation or held, directly or indirectly, by an officer or director. As at the date of this Information Circular, the Corporation is not aware of any officers or directors who have purchased such financial instruments.

Compensation Governance

In order to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to compensation matters, the Board has established the Compensation Committee and has reviewed and approved the Compensation Committee's Charter. The Compensation Committee is composed of Jacques Dessureault (Chair), Louis Sterling, and Angus Footman, a majority of whom are "independent" as such term is defined in National Instrument 52-110 – *Audit Committees* ("NI **52-110**").

As a whole, the members of the Compensation Committee have direct experience, knowledge and skills relevant to their responsibilities in executive compensation, including with respect to enabling the Compensation Committee in making informed decisions on the suitability of the Corporation's compensation policies and practices. Each of the members of the Compensation Committee has experience on the board of directors and related committees of other public companies, as described under "Particulars of Matters to be Acted Upon – Election of Directors" in this Information Circular.

The Compensation Committee meets on compensation matters as and when required with respect to director and executive compensation. The primary goal of the Compensation Committee as it relates to compensation matters is to ensure that the compensation provided to the directors of the Corporation, the Named Executive Officers and the Corporation's other senior officers is determined with regard to the Corporation's business strategies and objectives, such that the financial interest of the senior officers is aligned with the financial interest of Shareholders, and to ensure that their compensation is fair and reasonable and sufficient to attract and retain qualified and experienced executives. The Compensation Committee is given the authority to engage and compensate any outside advisor that it determines to be necessary to carry out its duties.

The Compensation Committee also reviews compensation programs of companies in its peer group to ensure that executive compensation is within the parameters of companies of a similar size and in the same industry and aims to position its executives in the 50th percentile relative to their peers. Levels of compensation are also established and maintained with the intent of attracting and retaining superior quality employees while ensuring that the levels are not contrary to the interests of Shareholders. In determining the appropriate peer group for 2021 in an emerging market sector, the Compensation Committee considered the following primary factors: consumer staples with a focus on similar operations; healthcare including a mix of organizations which focus on the development of pharmaceutical drugs or medications and those specializing in medical and/or adult-use marijuana; and annual revenue of CAD \$200 million or less. The secondary factors included: Canadian organizations with some U.S. based organizations to balance the peer group from a sizing perspective; and organization with peer groups of direct competitors.

The Corporation's general executive compensation philosophy is, whenever possible, to pay its executive officers "base" compensation in the form of salaries that are competitive in comparison to those earned by executive officers holding comparable positions with other Canadian entities similar to the Corporation while at the same time providing its executive officers with the opportunity to earn above average "total" compensation through the Option Plan, RSU Plan, and other equity-based compensation structures. See additional responsibilities of the Compensation Committee as described under "Corporate Governance – Board Committees – Compensation Committee" in this Information Circular.

Compensation of Directors

The following table illustrates the compensation structure for the non-executive directors, effective as of January 1, 2021, including the compensation for the lead director role which was introduced, and was effective from, December 2021. The directors may also be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in carrying out their duties as directors in addition to the compensation as set out below.

Services Provided	Annual Compensation Payable (\$)
Chairman	\$100,000
Lead Director	\$75,000
Independent director	\$50,000
Chair, Audit Committee	\$20,000
Chair, Other Committees	\$10,000
Board Meeting Fees	\$1,000
Committee Meeting Fees	\$1,000

Officers of the Corporation who also act as directors will not receive any additional compensation for services rendered in such capacity, other than as paid by the Corporation in their capacity as officers.

Summary Compensation Table – Named Executive Officers

The following table sets forth the compensation paid or awarded to the following individuals: (i) the CEO; (ii) the Former CEO; (iii) the Former CFO and Former Interim CFO; (iv) the Chief Operating Officer; (iv) the Vice President – Investor Relations and (v) the Vice President – Marketing, as collectively the Named Executive Officers of the Corporation; and (vi) each of the directors of the Corporation for the two most recently completed financial years:

Name and principal position	Year	Salary, consulting fee, retainer or commission (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Committee or meeting fees (\$)	Value of perquisites (\$)	Value of all other compensation (\$) ⁽¹²⁾	Total compensation (\$)
Sean Bovingdon ⁽¹⁾	2021	320,000	-	-	-	195,750	515,750
Chief Executive Officer, Former CFO, Former Interim CFO and Director	2020	242,250	-	-	-	212,000	454,250
Brian Athaide ⁽²⁾	2021	-	-	-	-	-	-
Former CEO and Director	2020	255,625			-	798,376	1,054,001
Michel Gagne ⁽³⁾	2021	250,000	-	-	-	150,000	400,000
Chief Operating Officer	2020	201,087	-	-	-	140,000	341,087
Shane Dungey ⁽⁴⁾	2021	200,000	-	-	-	185,400	385,400
Vice President, Investor Relations	2020	170,000	-	-	-	24,000	194,000
Drew Campbell ⁽⁵⁾	2021	210,000	-	-	-	98,550	308,550
Vice President, Marketing	2020	178,705	-	-	-	104,000	282,705
Marc Bertrand ⁽⁶⁾	2021	53,750	-	19,000	-	223,113(13)	295,863
Director	2020	51,000	-	18,600	-	168,000	237,600
Nicholas G. Kirton ⁽⁷⁾	2021	70,000	-	23,000	-	68,400	161,400
Director	2020	59,500	-	17,600	-	130,000	207,100
Jeffrey J. Scott ⁽⁸⁾	2021	102,962	-	23,000	-	86,625	212,587
Director	2020	85,000	-	20,400	-	138,000	243,400
Caroline MacCallum	2021	50,000	-	17,000	-	56,963	123,963
Director	2020	42,500	-	12,400	-	88,000	142,900
Jacques Dessureault	2021	60,747	-	25,000	-	79,113	164,860
Director	2020	51,000	-	17,000	-	88,000	156,000

Name and principal position	Year	Salary, consulting fee, retainer or commission (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Committee or meeting fees (\$)	Value of perquisites	Value of all other compensation (\$) ⁽¹²⁾	Total compensation (\$)
Angus Footman ⁽⁹⁾	2021	6,114	1	2,000	-	59,500	67,614
Director	2020	-	-	-	-	-	-
Olivier Dufourmantelle ⁽⁹⁾	2021	31,250	-	-	-	59,500	90,750
Director	2020	-	-	-	-	-	-
Adam Jaffe ⁽¹⁰⁾	2021	25,000	-	10,000	-	57,000	92,000
Director	2020	-	-	-	-	-	-
Louis Sterling ⁽¹¹⁾	2021	2,989	-	-	-	18,000	20,989
Director	2020	-	-	-	-	-	-

Notes:

- (1) On October 22, 2018, Sean Bovingdon was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation. On November 10, 2020, Mr. Bovingdon was appointed Interim Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. Mr. Bovingdon's annualized salary was \$250,000, then increased to \$285,000 effective April 1, 2019. Mr. Bovingdon's base salary was reduced by 20% on April 1, 2020, though his full salary was reinstated as of January 1, 2021. Mr. Bovingdon was paid an annual salary of \$320,000, effective January 1, 2021. On March 9, 2021, Mr. Bovingdon was appointed as Chief Executive Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer and a director. Effective January 31, 2022, Mr. Bovingdon resigned as Interim Chief Financial Officer. All amounts paid to Mr. Bovingdon are attributed to his role as an officer of the Corporation, and not as a director.
- (2) Brian Athaide's employment as Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation was terminated on November 10, 2020. Mr. Athaide's annualized salary was \$350,000 as at the date of his termination. Mr. Athaide also had a \$1,500 monthly commuting allowance. On April 1, 2020, Mr. Athaide's base salary was reduced by 30%. As termination pay, Mr. Athaide received a cash payment of \$70,459 and shares with a value \$667,917 in relation to termination pay.
- (3) Michel Gagné was appointed Chief Operating Officer on November 10, 2020. Mr. Gagne's base salary was reduced by 20% on April 1, 2020, though his full salary was reinstated as of January 1, 2021. Previously, Mr. Gagné was the General Manager, Valleyfield and then promoted as Vice President, Operations on August 5, 2020. His annualized salary was increased from \$195,000 annually to \$210,000 upon his promotion to Vice President, Operations. On January 1, 2021, Mr. Gagné's annual base salary was increased to \$250,000.
- (4) Shane Dungey was appointed Vice President, Investor Relations on March 11, 2019. His annualized salary was \$200,000. Mr. Dungey's base salary was reduced by 20% on April 1, 2020, though his full salary was reinstated as of January 1, 2021. As at the year ended December 31, 2021, Mr. Dungey met the criteria to be classified as an NEO.
- (5) Drew Campbell was appointed Vice President, Marketing on January 29, 2020. His annualized salary was \$210,000. Mr. Campbell's base salary was reduced by 20% on April 1, 2020, though his full salary was reinstated as of January 1, 2021. As at the year ended December 31, 2021, Mr. Campbell no longer met the criteria to be classified as an NEO, though is still employed by the Corporation.
- (6) Resigned from the Board on November 17, 2021.
- (7) Resigned from the Board on April 5, 2022.
- (8) Resigned from the Board on December 21, 2021.
- (9) Appointed to the Board on November 17, 2021.
- (10) Appointed to the Board on June 29, 2021.
- (11) Appointed to the Board on December 21, 2021
- (12) Unless otherwise note, value of all other Compensation is related to share-based and option-based awards as described further below.
- (13) Mr. Bertrand was paid a one-time compensation package comprised of \$100,000 worth of RSUs (363,636 RSUs), and \$60,000 in cash for advisory services provided to the Board in relation to the marketing and sales strategy and the transition of Mr. Bovingdon into his role as the CEO of the Corporation.

Incentive Plan Awards – Named Executive Officers

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, the Corporation granted 10,035,000 Options to its employees and directors with exercise prices ranging from \$0.11 to \$0.36 per Common Share, expiring between April 1, 2026 and December 20, 2026. The Options are subject to certain vesting conditions over three years from the date of grant, based on employment position and grade level within the organization.

The Corporation records compensation expense for the fair value of the Options granted under its Option Plan using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This model determines the fair value of Options granted and amortizes it to earnings over the vesting period in accordance with international financial reporting standards ("IFRS").

Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards

The Corporation granted an aggregate of 4,805,000 Options and an aggregate of 1,754,469 share-based awards to the Named Executive Officers and directors of the Corporation during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. The following table sets out all option-based and share-based awards granted to Named Executive Officers and directors during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021:

Name and position	Type of compensation security	Number of securities underlying unexercised options (#)	Date of issue or grant	Exercise/issue price (\$)	Closing price of security or underlying security on date of grant	Closing price of security or underlying security at year end (\$)	Expiry date
Sean Bovingdon ⁽¹⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	300,000	04/01/2021	\$0.30	\$0.32	\$0.095	04/01/2026
Scan Bovingaon	RSU ⁽³⁾	450,000	04/01/2021	\$0.32	\$0.32	\$0.095	12/31/2022
Michel Gagne ⁽⁴⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	250,000	04/01/2021	\$0.30	\$0.32	\$0.095	04/01/2026
Whener Gagne	RSU ⁽³⁾	333,333	04/01/2021	\$0.32	\$0.32	\$0.095	12/31/2022
Shane Dungey ⁽⁶⁾	Option ⁽⁵⁾	500,000	03/19/2021	\$0.33	\$0.33	\$0.095	03/19/2026
	Option ⁽²⁾	180,000	04/01/2021	\$0.30	\$0.32	\$0.095	04/01/2026
	RSU ⁽³⁾	200,000	04/01/2021	\$0.32	\$0.32	\$0.095	12/31/2022
Marc Bertrand ⁽⁹⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	250,000	04/01/2021	\$0.30	\$0.32	\$0.095	04/01/2026
	RSU ⁽⁷⁾	57,500	04/01/2021	\$0.32	\$0.32	\$0.095	12/31/2023
	RSU ⁽⁸⁾	363,636	01/06/2021	\$0.28	\$0.28	\$0.095	01/06/2021
Jeffrey Scott ⁽¹⁰⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	350,000	04/01/2021	\$0.30	\$0.32	\$0.095	04/01/2026
·	RSU ⁽⁷⁾	75,000	04/01/2021	\$0.32	\$0.32	\$0.095	12/31/2023
Nick Kirton ⁽¹¹⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	275,000	04/01/2021	\$0.30	\$0.32	\$0.095	04/01/2026
	RSU ⁽⁷⁾	60,000	04/01/2021	\$0.32	\$0.32	\$0.095	12/31/2023
Caroline MacCallum ⁽¹²⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	250,000	05/14/2021	\$0.33	\$0.30	\$0.095	05/14/2026
	RSU ⁽⁷⁾	57,500	05/14/2021	\$0.30	\$0.30	\$0.095	12/31/2023
Jacques Dessureault ⁽¹³⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	250,000	04/01/2021	\$0.30	\$0.32	\$0.095	04/01/2026
	Option ⁽²⁾	100,000	05/14/2021	\$0.33	\$0.30	\$0.095	05/14/2026
	RSU ⁽⁷⁾	57,500	04/01/2021	\$0.32	\$0.32	\$0.095	12/31/2023
Adam Jaffe ⁽¹⁴⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	300,000	06/29/2021	\$0.36	\$0.35	\$0.095	06/29/2026
Louis Sterling ⁽¹⁵⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	300,000	12/20/2021	\$ 0.11	\$0.11	\$0.095	12/20/2026
Angus Footman ⁽¹⁶⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	750,000	12/02/2021	\$ 0.14	\$0.12	\$0.095	12/02/2026
	RSU ⁽⁷⁾	50,000	12/02/2021	\$0.14	\$0.12	\$0.095	12/31/2024
Olivier Dufourmantelle ⁽¹⁶⁾	Option ⁽²⁾	750,000	12/02/2021	\$0.14	\$0.12	\$0.095	12/02/2026
	RSU ⁽⁷⁾	50,000	12/02/2021	\$0.14	\$0.12	\$0.095	12/31/2024

- (1) As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Bovingdon held 2,230,000 Options exercisable into 2,230,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to receive 536,667 Common Shares.
- (2) Vesting one-third on each of the next three anniversaries following the date of grant.
- (3) Vesting based on achievement of certain performance milestones.
- (4) As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Gagne held 1,125,000 Options exercisable into 1,125,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to receive 366,666 Common Shares.
- (5) Vesting one-sixth every six months over the next three anniversaries of the date of grant.
- As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Dungey held 940,000 Options exercisable into 940,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to receive 240,000 Common Shares.

- (7) Vesting one-half on each of the next two anniversaries following the date of grant.
- (8) Mr. Bertrand was paid a one-time compensation package which included \$100,000 worth of RSUs or (363,636 RSUs) for advisory services provided to the Board in relation to the marketing and sales strategy of the Corporation and transition of Mr. Bovingdon into his role as the CEO of the Corporation.
- (9) Resigned from the Board on November 17, 2021. As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Bertrand held 1,270,000 Options exercisable into 1,270,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to 137,500 Common Shares.
- (10) Resigned from the Board on December 20, 2021. As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Scott held 1,620,000 Options exercisable into 1,620,000 Common Shares.
- (11) Resigned from the Board on April 5, 2022. As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Kirton held 1,610,000 Options exercisable into 1,610,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to receive 116,667 Common Shares.
- (12) As at December 31, 2021, Ms. MacCallum held 1,010,000 Options exercisable into 1,010,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to 97,500 Common Shares.
- (13) As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Dessureault held 1,110,000 Options exercisable into 1,110,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling him to 97,500 Common Shares.
- (14) Appointed to the Board on June 29, 2021. As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Jaffe held 300,000 Options exercisable into 300,000 Common Shares.
- (15) Appointed to the Board on December 20, 2021. As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Sterling held 300,000 Options exercisable into 300,000 Common Shares.
- (16) Appointed to the Board on November 17, 2021. As at December 31, 2021, Mr. Footman and Mr. Dufourmantelle each held 750,000 Options exercisable into 750,000 Common Shares and RSUs entitling them to receive 50,000 Common Shares.

Exercise of Compensation Securities

The following table sets out information regarding each exercise of incentive plan awards during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 for each Named Executive Officer and director:

Name	Type of compensation security	Number of underlying securities exercised	Exercise price per security (\$)	Date of exercise	Closing price per security on the date of exercise (\$)	Difference between exercise price and closing price on date of exercise (\$)	Total value on exercise date (\$)
Marc Bertrand ⁽¹⁾ Director	RSU	363,636	n/a	01/13/2021	0.31	0.31	112,727
Jeffrey J. Scott ⁽²⁾ Director	RSU	75,000	n/a	12/23/2021	0.10	0.10	7,313

Notes:

- (1) Resigned from the Board on November 17, 2021.
- (2) Resigned from the Board on December 20, 2021.

Employment Agreements, Termination and Change in Control Benefits

In addition to the descriptions below, the Named Executive Officers are entitled to the accelerated vesting of Options and RSUs upon a Change of Control (as defined in the Option Plan and RSU Plan) in accordance with the terms of the Option Plan and RSU Plan, respectively (as further described herein). The Corporation currently has employment agreements with each of its Named Executive Officers as follows:

Sean Bovingdon

On October 22, 2018, the Corporation entered into an employment agreement with Sean Bovingdon to provide Chief Financial Officer services to the Corporation for an annual salary of \$250,000 (the "Bovingdon Agreement"). On April 1, 2019, the Corporation and Mr. Bovingdon amended the Bovingdon Agreement to increase Mr. Bovingdon's base annual salary to \$285,000. Mr. Bovingdon's salary was reduced by 20% on April 1, 2020, though his full salary was reinstated as of January 1, 2021. On November 10, 2020, Mr. Bovingdon was appointed as Interim Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, and the Corporation amended the Bovingdon Agreement to provide Chief Executive Officer services to the Corporation for an annual salary of \$320,000, to be effective as of January 1, 2021. On March 9, 2021, Mr. Bovingdon was appointed as Chief Executive Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer and a director.

Effective January 31, 2022, Mr. Bovingdon resigned as Interim Chief Financial Officer. All amounts paid to Mr. Bovingdon are attributed to his role as an officer of the Corporation, and not as a director. While employed by the Corporation and for a period of 12 months after the termination of employment for any reason, Mr. Bovingdon is subject to non-compete and non-solicit covenants. The agreement provides that Mr. Bovingdon may terminate his employment with the Corporation at any time by providing the Corporation with four weeks' notice in writing. The Corporation may terminate the agreement at any time with or without cause. Provided he signs a release in favour of the Corporation, Mr. Bovingdon's entitlements upon termination without cause or upon a change of control transaction will be a severance amount equivalent to eighteen months base salary and benefits. If such termination without cause occurred as at December 31, 2021, Mr. Bovingdon would have been entitled to a payment valued at \$480,000.

Michel Gagné

The Corporation entered into an employment agreement with Michel Gagné effective March 9, 2019, as amended on August 5, 2020, November 10, 2020 and March 29, 2021 (the "Gagné Agreement"). Under the terms of the Gagné Agreement, Mr. Gagné agreed to act as the Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation. On April 1, 2020 Mr. Gagné's base salary was reduced by 20%, though his full salary was reinstated as of January 1, 2021. In consideration for his services, the Corporation agreed to pay Mr. Gagné an annual base salary of \$250,000 effective January 1, 2021. Mr. Gagné is subject to non-solicit covenants while employed by the Corporation and for a period of twelve months after the termination of employment for any reason. The Gagné Agreement provides that Mr. Gagné may terminate his employment with the Corporation at any time by providing the Corporation with four weeks' notice in writing. The Corporation may terminate the Gagné Agreement at any time with or without cause. Provided he signs a release in favour of the Corporation, Mr. Gagné's entitlements upon termination without cause and or upon a change of control transaction will be a severance amount equivalent to twelve months base salary and benefits. If such termination without cause occurred as at December 31, 2021, Mr. Gagné would have been entitled to a payment valued at \$250,000.

Shane Dungey

The Corporation entered into an employment agreement with Shane Dungey effective March 11, 2019, as amended on August 12, 2021 (the "**Dungey Agreement**"). On April 1, 2020, Mr. Mr. Dugey's base salary was reduced by 20%, though his full salary was reinstated as of January 1, 2021. Under the terms of the Dungey Agreement, Mr. Dungey agreed to act as Vice President, Investor Relations. In consideration for his services, the Corporation agreed to pay Mr. Dungey an annual base salary of \$200,000. Mr. Dungey is subject to non-solicit covenants while employed by the Corporation and for a period of twelve months after the termination of employment for any reason. The Dungey Agreement provides that Mr. Dungey may terminate his employment with the Corporation at any time by providing the Corporation with four weeks' notice in writing. The Corporation may terminate the Dungey Agreement at any time with or without cause. Provided he signs a release in favour of the Corporation, Mr. Dungey's entitlements upon termination without cause or upon a change of control transaction will be a severance amount equivalent to twelve months base salary and benefits. If such termination without cause occurred as at December 31, 2021, Mr. Dungey would have been entitled to a payment valued at \$200,000.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

Equity Incentive Plan Information

The following table provides information regarding the number of Common Shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding Options and RSUs pursuant to the Option Plan and the RSU Plan, respectively, as at December 31, 2021:

Plan Category	Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding convertible securities under Equity Incentive Plans (a)	Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding Options (b)	Number of securities remaining available for future issuance under Equity Incentive Plans (excluding securities reflected in column (a))
Equity Incentive Plans Approved by Shareholders at December 31, 2021	29,259,038	\$1.01	44,493,858
Equity Incentive Plans not approved by securityholders	N/A	N/A	N/A

Option Plan

Summary. The Corporation's Option Plan is a rolling plan, which, subject to adjustment provisions provided therein, provides that an aggregate maximum number of Common Shares that may be issued upon the exercise or settlement of Options granted under the Option Plan (and any awards granted under all other equity incentive plans of the Corporation) shall not exceed 10% of the Corporation's issued and outstanding Common Shares from time to time, such number being 753,212,777 as at the date of this Information Circular. The Option Plan is considered an "evergreen" plan, since the Common Shares covered by awards which have been exercised, settled or terminated shall be available for subsequent grants under the Option Plan and the number of awards available to grant increases as the number of issued and outstanding Common Shares increases.

Eligible Participants. Options may be granted to directors, officers, employees or consultants of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries as determined by the Board as being eligible for participation in the Option Plan

Maximum Number of Shares Issuable. The number of Common Shares issuable under the Option Plan, together with all of the Corporation's other previously established or proposed share compensation arrangements, including the RSU Plan, may not exceed 10% of the total number of issued and outstanding Common Shares. In addition to this 10% cap,

- (a) The aggregate number of Common Shares which may be issuable at any time pursuant to the Option Plan or any other share compensation arrangement (pre-existing or otherwise) to Insiders shall not exceed 10% of the Common Shares then outstanding.
- (b) The aggregate number of Common Shares which may be issued pursuant to the Option Plan or any other share compensation arrangement (pre-existing or otherwise) to Insiders within a one-year period shall not exceed 10% of the Common Shares then outstanding.
- (c) Notwithstanding the rolling 10% maximum number available for reserve and issuance pursuant to all share compensation arrangements of the Corporation, the number of Common Shares that may be issued to U.S. residents pursuant to the exercise of Incentive Stock Options, is an aggregate maximum of 5,000,000 Common Shares.

Vesting of Options. Options granted pursuant to the Option Plan shall vest and become exercisable by an Optionee at such time or times as may be determined by the Board and may be made subject to performance conditions as the Board may determine at the time of granting such Options.

Term of Options. Subject to the blackout period provisions as outlined in the Option Plan, the term of the Options shall be determined by the Board at the time of granting the Options provided, however, that the term of the Options must not extend beyond ten years from the grant date of the Option.

RSU Plan

Summary. The Corporation currently maintains the RSU Plan, which provides for the acquisition of Common Shares by Participants under the RSU Plan for the purpose of advancing the interests of the Corporation through the attraction, motivation and retention of employees, consultants and directors of the Corporation and its designated affiliates.

Eligible Participants. Employees, consultants and directors of the Corporation and its designated affiliates are eligible to participate in the RSU Plan. In accordance with the terms of the RSU Plan, the Corporation, under the authority of the Board through a designated committee (the "RSU Committee"), will approve those employees, consultants and directors who are entitled to receive RSUs and the number of RSUs to be awarded to each Participant. RSUs awarded to Participants are credited to them by means of an entry in a notional account in their favour on the books of the Corporation. Each RSU awarded conditionally entitles the Participant to receive one Common Share upon attainment of the RSU vesting criteria.

Maximum Number of Common Shares Reserved for Issuance. The maximum number of Common Shares made available for issuance upon settlement of RSUs pursuant to the RSU Plan shall not exceed a fixed maximum of 10,000,000 Common Shares, which represents approximately 1.33% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares as at the date of this Information Circular.

The RSU Plan provides that the maximum number of Common Shares issuable to Insiders pursuant to the plan, together with any Common Shares issuable pursuant to any other security-based compensation arrangements of the Corporation, will not exceed 10% of the total number of outstanding Common Shares. In addition, the maximum number of Common Shares issued to Insiders under the RSU Plan, together with any Common Shares issued to Insiders pursuant to any other security-based compensation arrangements of the Corporation within any one year period, will not exceed 10% of the total number of outstanding Common Shares.

Vesting. The vesting of RSUs is conditional upon the expiry of a time-based vesting period, which vesting period may be tied, at the sole discretion of the Board or the RSU Committee, to achievement of specified performance criteria within the vesting period. The duration of the vesting period and other vesting terms applicable to the grant of the RSUs shall be determined at the time of the grant by the RSU Committee. Once the RSUs vest, the Participant is entitled to and will automatically receive the equivalent number of underlying Common Shares.

Expiry. The RSU Committee determines the expiry date of an RSU in connection with each grant. The RSU will terminate and be cancelled if it is not vested and settled by its expiry date. The expiry date set by the RSU Committee will be no later than (and, unless otherwise determined on the grant date by the RSU Committee, will be) December 31st of the calendar year in which the third anniversary of the grant date occurs.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Summary. The Corporation currently maintains the ESPP, which enables eligible employees to acquire Common Shares in a convenient and systematic manner through payroll deductions and employer contributions, so as to encourage a proprietary interest in the operation, growth and development of the Corporation. The Board approved amendments to the ESPP on October 9, 2020, to amend the ESPP to permit Common Share issuances from treasury, amend the amendment provision of the ESPP, include insider participation limits and makes other changes of a housekeeping nature. Shareholders approved the amendments to the ESPP on December 15, 2020.

Eligible Participants. Employees of the Corporation and its designated subsidiaries who are permanent full-time employees or permanent part-time employees, who work, in each case, a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week are eligible to participate in the ESPP after completing three (3) months of continuous service (an "ESPP Participant"). Participation is voluntary.

Personal Contributions. An eligible employee may authorize payroll deductions in amounts equal to a whole number percentage of his or her eligible earnings, to a maximum of five percent (5%). A participant may change the amount of his or her personal contributions no more than once in each calendar quarter. A participant may voluntarily suspend his or her personal contributions (and accordingly any employer contributions will also be suspended) no more than once in each calendar quarter, for up to six (6) months.

Employer Contributions. Where an ESPP Participant has made a personal contribution, each applicable pay period his or her employer will make an employer contribution to the plan for the benefit of that ESPP Participant in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the ESPP Participant's personal contribution during that pay period, to a maximum contribution of two-and-a-half percent (2.5%) of the ESPP Participant's eligible earnings for that pay period, such employer contribution never to exceed CAD\$5,000.00 in any calendar year. Additionally, an ESPP Participant's employer may make discretionary employer contributions for the benefit of any employee or group of employees in such amounts and at such times as the Board or the Compensation Committee may approve.

Vesting. All funds and Common Shares acquired with personal contributions are not subject to a vesting period. Employer contributions made on behalf of an ESPP Participant will be used to acquire restricted shares, which are Common Shares that generally vest on the first anniversary of the date on which such restricted share was allocated to an ESPP Participant's account.

Maximum Number of Common Shares Issued from Treasury. The maximum number of Common Shares made available for issuance from treasury pursuant to the ESPP shall not exceed a fixed maximum of 3,000,000 Common Shares, subject to any Adjustments (as defined below), which represents approximately 0.4% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares as of December 31, 2021 and 0.4% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares as at the date of this Information Circular. No Common Shares were issued from treasury pursuant to the ESPP.

The aggregate number of Common Shares issuable from treasury to Insiders under the ESPP and under all other security-based compensation arrangements of the Corporation, will not exceed 10% of the total number of outstanding Common Shares. In addition, the maximum number of Common Shares issued to Insiders under the ESPP, together with any Common Shares issued to Insiders pursuant to any other security-based compensation arrangement of the Corporation within any one (1) year period, will not exceed 10% of the total number of outstanding Common Shares. Any Common Shares that are issued from treasury under the ESPP that are forfeited by a participant will again be available for future issuance under the plan.

Term. If the ESPP is terminated, all Common Shares and cash belonging to an ESPP Participant in their account will be paid to the ESPP Participant or as directed by the ESPP Participant, within ninety (90) days of the termination of the ESPP. All restricted shares held for the benefit of the ESPP Participant will immediately vest.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

At no time during the Corporation's last completed financial year, was any director, executive officer, employee, proposed management nominee for election as a director of the Corporation nor any associate of any such director, executive officer, or proposed management nominee of the Corporation or any former director, executive officer or employee of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries, indebted to the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries or indebted to another entity where such indebtedness is or has been the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries, other than routine indebtedness.

INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed herein, as of the date of this Information Circular, no informed person of the Corporation, any proposed director of the Corporation, or any associate or affiliate of any informed person or proposed director has had a material interest in any transaction since the commencement of the Corporation's most recently completed financial year or has a material interest in any proposed transaction which has materially affected or would affect the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries.

On November 17, 2021, the Corporation completed its arm's length acquisition of Galaxie (the "Galaxie Transaction") whereby, pursuant to the terms of a share purchase agreement (the "Galaxie Agreement") entered into between the Company and the shareholders of Galaxie on October 29, 2021, the Company acquired of all of the issued and outstanding shares of Galaxie, an Ontario corporation in the business of formulating, producing, manufacturing, selling, marketing and distributing cannabis products. Under the terms of the Galaxie Agreement, the Company paid an aggregate purchase price of \$24.27 million (the "Purchase Price") allocated between 2783935 Ontario Inc. and Aoco Ventures Inc. (located at 236 Old Irving Place, Ottawa, Ontario, K1Y 1Z8), a company controlled by Angus Footman and Olivier Dufourmantelle, both proposed directors of the Corporation (the "Proposed Directors"). The Purchase Price paid to the Proposed Directors was comprised of: (a) 42,403,200 Common Shares; and (b) 21,201,600 Common Shares. In addition, the Proposed Directors will also be entitled to earn up to 45,881,143 Common Shares, subject to the achievement of certain milestones by December 31, 2022.

In connection with the closing of the Galaxie Transaction, both the Proposed Directors joined the Board, with Mr. Footman being appointed as Chairman of the Board. Mr. Dufourmantelle was also appointed as President of U.S. Operations of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Except as set out herein, there are no management functions of the Corporation which are to any substantial degree performed by a person or Corporation other than the directors or executive officers of the Corporation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board believes that strong corporate governance is critical to the performance and long-term success of the Corporation. Ethical business practices and a culture of integrity are the foundation on which the Corporation is built, and the Board is committed to ensuring responsible governance practices permeate all levels of the organization. The Corporation's corporate governance practices and disclosure meet or exceed all legal and regulatory requirements applicable to it, including National Policy 58-201 – *Corporate Governance Guidelines*, NI 58-101, the requirements of the CBCA, and the requirements of the CSE.

Board of Directors

The Board facilitates the exercise of independent supervision over management by ensuring representation on the Board by directors who are independent of management. Directors are considered to be independent if they have no direct or indirect material relationship with the Corporation that could, in the view of the Board, reasonably interfere with the exercise of a director's independent judgement. For information regarding independence of directors nominees, see "Business of the Meeting – Election of Directors". As of the date of this Information Circular, the Corporation currently has a Board comprised of eight (8) directors, the majority of whom are independent; the non-independent directors are Messrs. Angus Footman, Sean Bovingdon, and Olivier Dufourmantelle.

Exercise of Independence by the Board

The independent directors are able to, and at ad hoc intervals, as necessary, meet without the presence of management to facilitate open and candid discussions and ensure that the Board may function

independent of management. Throughout 2021, the independent directors met in camera, at a minimum, at each regular Board meeting.

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Angus Footman, not an independent director. As a result, Mr. Jacques Dessureault was appointed Lead Director on December 20, 2021. In his role, Mr. Dessureault is responsible for facilitating the functioning of the Board independent of the senior management of the Corporation and the Chairman, in order to satisfy independence requirements under applicable Canadian securities law. Mr. Dessureault enhances the independence and effectiveness of the Board by serving as an independent leadership contact for the directors and management and fostering positive, professional and effective relationships between the Board and management. Mr. Dessureault provides an independent perspective to the Board and independent advice to the Chairman in support of the Chairman managing the affairs of the Board. He also assists and supports the Chairman in setting the "tone" for the Board so as to foster ethical and responsible decision making, appropriate oversight of management and best practices in corporate governance. Additional responsibilities are set out in the Lead Director terms of reference which was adopted by the Board on April 5, 2022.

Other Reporting Issuer Experience

In accordance with the Corporation's Board Mandate, directors can serve on up to four public boards in total, including TGOD's. As at the date of this Information Circular, none of the directors serve on more than three other public boards and none of them currently sit together on the board of another public company. Please refer to a particular director's profile, under "Business of the Meeting – Elections of Directors" for information regarding other public directorship.

Meetings of the Board

Directors are expected to attend and participate in substantially all meetings of the Board and of all the committees of which they serve. They are expected to attend such meetings fully prepared, and remain in attendance for the duration of the meeting. The Board and the committees aim to hold all meetings in person or, in light of the restrictions imposed by COVID-19, via video conference to facilitate the most effective and productive discussions and analysis. Where a director's absence from a meeting is unavoidable, the director is expected to contact the Chair, the CEO or Corporate Secretary as soon as possible for a briefing on the substantive elements of the meeting.

The following table sets out the meeting attendance record of the directors during the fiscal year end December 31, 2021:

	Board Meetings	Committee Meetings			
Director		Audit	Corporate Governance & Nominating	Compensation	
Sean Bovingdon ⁽¹⁾	16 of 16	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Marc Bertrand ⁽²⁾	16 of 16	N/A	N/A	2 of 2	
Nicholas G. Kirton ⁽³⁾	18 of 18	4 of 4	1 of 1	N/A	
Jeffrey J. Scott ⁽⁴⁾	18 of 18	2 of 2	1 of 1	2 of 2	
Caroline MacCallum	17 of 18	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Jacques Dessureault ⁽⁵⁾	18 of 18	4 of 4	1 of 1	2 of 2	
Angus Footman ⁽⁶⁾	2 of 2	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Olivier Dufourmantelle ⁽⁷⁾	2 of 2	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Adam Jaffe ⁽⁸⁾	8 of 8	2 of 2	N/A	N/A	
Louis Sterling ⁽⁹⁾	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	

Notes:

- (1) Appointed to the Board on March 9, 2021
- (2) Mr. Bertrand resigned from the Audit Committee on January 6, 2021 and then subsequently resigned from the Board on November 17, 2021.
- (3) Resigned from the Board on April 5, 2022.
- (4) Resigned from the Audit Committee on June 29, 2021 and then subsequently resigned from the Board on December 20, 2021.
- (5) Appointed to the Audit Committee on March 8, 2021
- (6) Appointed to the Board, Compensation Committee and CGN Committee on November 17, 2021.
- (7) Appointed to the Board on November 17, 2021 and appointed to the CGN Committee on December 20, 2021
- (8) Appointed to the Board and Audit Committee on June 29, 2021.
- (9) Appointed to the Board and CGN Committee on December 20, 2021.

Board Mandate

The full text of the Board's written mandate is attached as Schedule "A". The directors are stewards of the Corporation, responsible for the overall management and direction of the business and affairs of the Corporation. The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, overseeing the following:

- Strategic planning process;
- Identification of principal business opportunities;
- Identification of management of risks; and
- Internal controls and management information systems.

The Board discharges its responsibilities either directly or through its established committees. Each director ultimately assumes responsibility for keeping himself or herself informed about the Corporation's business and relevant developments outside the Corporation that affect its business. Management assists directors by providing them with regular updates on relevant developments and other information that management considers of interest to the Board. Directors may also attend other Board committee meetings if they are not active members, to broaden their knowledge base and receive additional information on the Corporation's business and developments in areas where they are not commonly exposed.

A copy of the Board Mandate is also available on the Corporation's website: www.tgod.ca.

Board Committees

There are currently three committees of the Board: (a) the CGN Committee, (b) Compensation Committee, and (c) Audit Committee (collectively, the "Committees"), all of which are briefly described below. As of the date of this Information Circular, each of the Audit Committee and the CGN Committee is solely comprised of independent directors, and the Compensation Committee is comprised of a majority of independent directors. Each Committee has its own charter. Committee chairs report to the Board, providing updates on the Committee's deliberations and any recommendations that require the Board's approval. The Committees review their charter annually and update as necessary.

Committee Chairs

The Corporation has developed a written position description for Committee chairs. The relevant Committee chairs guide the roles and responsibilities of the Committee chairs. The Committee chairs are responsible for, among other things, scheduling, setting agendas for and presiding over Committee meetings and acting as liaison between the Committee and the Board.

Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee

Chair: Louis Sterling

Other Members: Chris Schnarr

Caroline MacCallum

On January 2, 2018, the Board established the CGN Committee and adopted a CGN Committee Charter, which has been amended from time to time. The CGN Committee is responsible for all matters pertaining to corporate governance issues, new director nominees, as well as the size and composition of the Board and Board committees. In particular, the CGN Committee is responsible for: (a) developing and enforcing policy in the area of corporate governance and the practices of the Board in light of the Corporation's particular circumstances, the changing needs of investors and the Corporation, and changes in corporate governance guidelines; (b) preparing and recommending to the Board annually a statement of corporate governance practices to be included in the Corporation's information circular and ensuring that such disclosure is complete and provided in accordance with the regulatory requirements; (c) monitoring developments in the area of corporate governance and the practices of the Board and advising the Board

accordingly; (d) developing, implementing, and maintaining appropriate policies with respect to disclosure, confidentiality and insider trading; (e) adopting a process for determining what competencies and skills the Board as a whole should have, and apply this result to the recruitment process for new directors; (f) identifying individuals qualified to become new Board members and recommending to the Board the new director nominees for the next annual meeting of shareholders; (g) developing a position description for the Chair of the Board and to assess the performance of the Chair of the Board; (h) reviewing on a regular basis, but not less than annually, the mandate of the Board, the charter of each of the Committees of the Board, and the methods and processes by which the Board fulfills its duties and responsibilities; and (i) annually review credentials of existing Board members to assess suitability for re-election; amongst other things.

The CGN Committee meets as required to review and make recommendations to the Board on all direct and indirect compensation, benefits and perquisites for senior management and directors of the Corporation. The Corporation's goal is to assemble a Board with the appropriate background, knowledge, skills and diversity to effectively carry out its duties, oversee the Corporation's strategy and business affairs and foster a climate that allows the Board to constructively guide and challenge management.

The Corporation expects all Board members to be, and the CGN Committee ensures they are, financially literate, independent minded and team players. The CGN Committee also considers the factors below when assessing potential candidates:

- the Board's overall mix of skills and experience;
- how actively Board candidates participate in meetings and develop an understanding of our business;
- their character, integrity, judgment and record of achievement; and
- diversity (including gender, aboriginal heritage, age, sexual orientation and geographic representation).

62.5% of the current directors of the Corporation are independent. If all of the nominated directors are elected at the Meeting, five of the eight directors of the Corporation will be independent.

Each of the nominated directors is eligible to serve as a director and has expressed their willingness to do so. Directors who are elected will serve until the end of the next annual meeting of Shareholders, or until a successor is elected or appointed. The Board does not limit the number of terms a director is eligible to serve. Imposing a term limit means it may lose the contributions of longer serving directors who have developed a deep knowledge and understanding of the Corporation over time. The Corporation considers the benefits of regular renewal in the context of the needs of the Board at the time.

See "Elections of Directors" above for more information about the members of the Board.

The Corporation has not adopted a retirement policy or a term limit. The Corporation believes it would be unduly restrictive and not in the best interest of the Corporation to adopt specific director term limits. Industry knowledge and insights into the Corporation and its operations along with commitment and expertise are vital to the successful functioning of the Board. Board efficacy will be assured through annual and periodic comprehensive assessments of directors, and not through the imposition of arbitrary term limits. The CGN Committee chair is then responsible for reporting the findings and comments from all directors and reporting to the full board the collective assessment of the Board's performance as well as the committees and individual directors. The Board will discuss the assessment reports and determine what, if necessary, action should be taken to improve performance. The directors' completion of the Corporation's Board Skills Matrix is also used to assess individual director's competencies and strengths and the competency of the Board as a whole. The Board Skills Matrix assists in determining individual's suitability to the Board and Board Committees.

The following table, being the Board Skills Matrix, sets out a non-exhaustive list of each proposed director's skills and experiences, as disclosed by the individual director as of the date of this Information Circular.

Experience/ Skills	Angus Footman	Sean Bovingdon	Jacques Dessureault	Olivier Dufourmantelle	Adam Jaffe	Dr. Caroline MacCallum	Chris Schnarr	Louis Sterling
Cannabis Industry	√	√	V	√		√	√	
Pharmaceutical/ Biomedical industry	$\sqrt{}$		√			√	√	
Regulated Industry	√	√	V	√		√	√	
Public Company Board Experience	$\sqrt{}$	√	V				√	
Environmental, Social & Governance				V		√	√	
International Business	√	√	V	√			√	
Government Relations / Public Policy			V	V			√	
Transactional / M&A	√	√	$\sqrt{}$	√	√		√	√
Corporate Finance and Capital Markets	V	√	V	V	V		V	√
Financial Reporting / Internal Controls		√			V		√	
Compensation, HR & Talent Development	V	√	√	V			V	V
Marketing	√		V				√	√
General Management and Business Operations	V	V	V	V			√	√
Risk Management	√	√	$\sqrt{}$	V		√	√	
Investor Relations		√	√		√		√	
Legal / Regulatory	√	√	V				√	√
Strategic Planning	\checkmark	√	$\sqrt{}$	V	√		√	√
CEO Experience	$\sqrt{}$	√					√	
CFO Experience		√			$\sqrt{}$		√	
Cross Border / U.S.	$\sqrt{}$	√	$\sqrt{}$	V	√		√	√
IT / Cybersecurity	\checkmark	\checkmark						

In fulfilling its Charter, the CGN Committee is also responsible for establishing procedures for, and approving and ensuring provision of, an appropriate orientation and education program for new recruits to the Board and continuing education for Board members. This includes periodically canvasing the directors to determine their training and education needs and interests, arranging ongoing visitation by directors to the Corporation's facilities and operations, and encouraging and facilitating presentations by outside experts to the Board or Committees on matters of particular importance or emerging significance. The CGN Committee also provides continuing education opportunities for all directors, so that individuals may maintain or enhance their skills and abilities as directors, as well as to ensure their knowledge and understanding of the Corporation's business remain current.

Compensation Committee

Chair: Jacques Dessureault

Other Members: Louis Sterling

Angus Footman

On January 2, 2018, the Board established the Compensation Committee and adopted a Compensation Committee Charter, which has been amended from time to time. The Compensation Committee assists the Board with matters relating to the compensation and retention of key senior management employees, and in particular the CEO and the CFO. The responsibilities of the Compensation Committee include: (a) developing the Corporation's overall approach to compensation issues and, subject to approval by the Board, to implement and administer a system of compensation providing for short and longer term incentives, and which reflects superior standards of compensation practices and to continue to develop the Corporation's approach to compensation issues; (b) setting policies for senior officers' remuneration; (c) developing and implementing a process for assessing the effectiveness of the compensation policies, practices and remuneration of the Corporation and to report and make recommendations to the Board thereon; (d) recommending to the Board, human resources and compensation policies and guidelines; (e) ensuring that the Corporation has in place programs to attract and develop management of the highest calibre and a process to provide for the orderly succession of management, including receipt on an annual basis of any recommendations of candidates for the CEO and the CFO in this regard; (f) preparing an annual report to the Board on succession planning which should include policies and principles for CEO and the CFO selection and performance review; (g) undertaking an annual review of compensation issues and practices as they affect the Corporation and make a comprehensive set of recommendations to the Board during each calendar year; (h) overseeing the administration of the Corporation's compensation plans, including stock option plans, outside directors compensation plans, and such other compensation plans or structures as are adopted by the Corporation from time to time; and (i) reviewing and approving executive compensation disclosure to be made in the proxy circular prepared in connection with each annual general meeting of the Corporation; amongst other things. To make its recommendations on compensation, the Compensation Committee takes into account the types of compensation and the amounts paid to directors and senior officers of comparable Canadian companies.

Audit Committee

Chair: Chris Schnarr

Other Members: Jacques Dessureault

Adam Jaffe

The Audit Committee is currently comprised of three (3) directors, all of whom are independent and financially literate. The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial information, which will be provided to the Shareholders and the public, the systems of corporate controls, which management and the Board have established, and overseeing the audit process. It has general responsibility to oversee internal controls, accounting and auditing activities and legal compliance of the Corporation. The Audit Committee also is mandated to review and approve all material related party transactions.

Codes and Policies

On January 2, 2018, the Board approved a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, a Disclosure & Confidentiality Policy, an Insider Trading Policy, a Majority Voting Policy, and a Whistle Blower Policy, copies of which are posted on the Corporation's website. The Corporation updated the Insider Trading Policy and Disclosure & Confidentiality Policy on May 12, 2021 in order to be aligned with best practices and for certain housekeeping updates, and further updated the Insider Trading Policy in March 2022, following the Corporation's move to the CSE. The Board continues to monitor compliance with its Code

of Business Conduct and Ethics on an ongoing basis and discusses compliance at scheduled meetings of the Board no less than quarterly.

On March 10, 2019, the Board approved a formal written mandate, which is attached as Schedule "A". On May 8, 2019, the Board approved written Share Ownership Guidelines, an Executive Compensation Claw-Back Policy, a Diversity & Inclusion Policy, Terms of Reference for the Chairman of the Board, Terms of Reference for the Chief Executive Officer, and Terms of Reference for Committee Chair. On June 22, 2020, the Board amended the Diversity & Inclusion Policy. On April 5, 2022, the Board approved Terms of Reference for the Lead Director. Copies of all the aforementioned documents are posted on the Corporation's website.

Share Ownership Guidelines and Anti-Hedging Policy

The Corporation has adopted Share Ownership Guidelines (the "Guidelines") which set minimum shareholding requirements for directors and certain executive officers. TGOD believes the Guidelines provide a further incentive to directors and executive officers to align with Shareholders' interests. The Guidelines also disallow directors and certain executive officers from engaging in hedging against a decrease in the value of the Corporation. The Guidelines provide the following equity investment requirements, which may be satisfied through Common Shares, RSUs, or such other equity-based incentives as determined by the Board from time to time:

Position	Aggregate Value		
Director	3 times annual cash retainer		
Chief Executive Officer	3 times annual base salary		
Chief Financial Officer	2 times annual base salary		
Chief Operating Officer	2 times annual base salary		

The minimum aggregate equity investment in the Corporation is expected to be satisfied within five (5) years of appointment. In the event a director's or executive officer's compensation is increased, he or she will have five (5) years from the date of such increase to comply with the share ownership requirement in respect of the additional required amount. If a director or executive officer has achieved the requisite equity investment level and subsequently falls below the applicable Guidelines solely due to a decline in the value of shares, the Guideline will be deemed satisfied for such director or executive officer provided that such director or executive officer maintains at least the equity investment held at the time compliance was achieved. The Corporation prohibits its directors and executive officers from engaging in transactions that are designed to hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of the Corporation's equity securities.

As of the date of this Information Circular, each of the directors and required executive officers are in compliance with the Guidelines as the Guidelines allow the required equity investment to be accumulated within five (5) years of appointment.

Executive Claw-Back Policy

The Board formally adopted the following Executive Compensation Claw-Back Policy:

In the event of a restatement of Corporation's financial results, other than a restatement caused by a change in applicable accounting rules or interpretations, the result of which is that any performance-based compensation paid to an executive officer that would have been a lower amount had it been calculated on such restated results, the Board shall review such performance-based compensation. Restatements of financial statements may be due to material error, fraudulent behaviour or other intentional misconduct of executive officers of the Corporation.

If the Board determines that the amount of any performance compensation actually paid or awarded to an executive officer (the "Awarded Compensation") would have been a lower amount had it been calculated based on such restated financial statements (the "Actual Compensation"), then the Board may, seek to recover for the benefit of the Corporation the after-tax portion of the difference between the Awarded Compensation and the Actual Compensation (such difference, the "Excess Compensation"). In determining the after-tax portion of the Excess Compensation, the Board shall take into account its good faith estimate of the value of any tax deduction available to the executive officer in respect of such repayment. Before the Board determines to seek recovery pursuant to this policy, it shall provide to the applicable executive officer written notice and the opportunity to be heard, at a meeting of the Board.

If the Board determines to seek a recovery pursuant to this policy, it shall make a written demand for repayment from the executive officer and, if the executive officer does not within a reasonable period tender repayment in response to such demand, and the Board determines that he or she is unlikely to do so, the Board may seek a court order against the executive officer for such repayment. The Board may exercise its discretion in how to apply this claw-back in the event that a claw-back would cause financial hardship for an executive officer.

Diversity & Inclusion Policy

On June 22, 2020, the Corporation revised its Diversity & Inclusion Policy to promote a broader set of diversity goals and its Diversity & Inclusion Policy now centers on *designated groups* – having the meaning as defined in the *Employment Equity Act* (being women, visible minorities, Aboriginal peoples and persons with disabilities). The Corporation recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a board of directors and executive officers comprised of highly talented and experienced individuals, diverse in a broad array of attributes to enhance the quality of its performance and reflect the diversity of the Corporation's stakeholders. The Corporation is committed to ensuring that its Board and executive officers are reflective of diverse professional experience, skills, knowledge and other attributes that are essential to its successful operations and the achievement of the Corporation's current and future plans and objectives. The Corporation values the differences of people, cultures and ideas and approaches diversity with an inclusive mindset focusing on the inclusion of members of designated groups.

In support of this objective and in accordance with its Diversity & Inclusion Policy, the CGN Committee and the executive team (as appropriate) will, when identifying candidates to nominate for election to the Board or to appoint in an executive officer capacity:

- (a) will at all times select the candidate that possesses the highest qualifications to assist the Corporation in its objectives regardless of membership in a designated group, including whether the candidate is a woman:
- (b) consider the level of representation of members of the designated groups, including women, on the Board or in executive officer positions when making recommendations for nominees to the Board or for appointment as executive officers and in general with regard to succession planning for the Board and executive officers;
- (c) consider and recommend to the Board potential strategies for identifying and attracting members of the designated groups, including women, as candidates, such as leveraging industry contacts, maintaining an evergreen list of potential board candidates, and encouraging referrals from internal and external sources;
- (d) together with the CEO, consider and recommend to the Board potential strategies for identifying and attracting members of the designated groups, including women, for officer candidates, such as leveraging industry contacts and encouraging referrals from internal and external sources; and
- (e) to the extent required or desirable, engage qualified independent external advisors to assist the Board in conducting its search for director candidates that meet the Board's criteria regarding skills,

experience and diversity, specifically directed to include candidates who are members of designated groups, including women.

The representation of designated groups is one of many factors considered in the overall recruitment and selection process in respect of Board and executive officer positions at the Corporation. Given the nature and size of the Corporation's business and its industry, it may from time to time be challenging for the Corporation to identify a qualified pool of candidates that adequately reflects the Corporation's diversity values combined with the required professional skills. The Corporation has therefore not adopted any specific targets regarding the representation of women or members of other designated groups on the Board and in executive officer capacities, but will promote its objectives through the initiatives set out in this policy with a view to identifying and fostering the development of a suitable and diverse pool of candidates for nomination or appointment over time.

The Board will assess its progress in achieving the objectives of its Diversity & Inclusion Policy regarding the identification and nomination of candidates from designated groups for directors and executive officers on an annual basis. In this regard, the Corporation has started collecting voluntary self-identifying information from its directors, officers, and employees, and will be utilizing its data analytics platform in its system of records in order to determine whether its objectives are being met. Since implementation of its Diversity & Inclusion Policy, the representation of women has increased within the Corporation from approximately 30% in 2020 to approximately 40% as at December 31, 2021.

As at the date of this Information Circular, the Corporation had the following representation from each of the designated groups on its Board and among senior management:

Total Number of Directors on the Board and Senior Management Members			
Board	There are currently eight (8) directors on the Board.		
Senior Management	There are currently twelve (12) members of senior management of the Corporation.		

Representation of Designated Groups on the Board			
Designated Groups	Number	Percentage	
Women	1/8	13%	
Indigenous peoples	0/8	0%	
Members of visible minorities	1/8	13%	
Persons with disabilities	0/8	0%	
Number of individuals that are members of more than one designated group ⁽¹⁾	-	-	

Note:

⁽¹⁾ Currently, the Corporation does not collect and analyze this data. This data will be collected, tracked and analyzed for existing and new hires in 2022.

Representation of Designated Groups among Senior Management			
Designated Groups	Number	Percentage	
Women	4/12	33%	
Indigenous peoples	0/12	0%	
Members of visible minorities	2/12	17%	
Persons with disabilities	0/12	0%	
Number of individuals that are members of more than one designated group ⁽¹⁾	-	-	

Note:

 Currently, the Corporation does not collect and analyze this data. This data will be collected, tracked and analyzed for existing and new hires in 2022.

In addition to the above representation of designated groups among the Corporation's Board and senior management, as of the date of this Information Circular, 42% of the Corporation's total workforce are women and the Corporation estimates that approximately 28% of the Corporation's total salaried workforce are members of a visible minority group.

The Corporation is considering updates to its Diversity & Inclusion Policy in order to achieve the Corporation's goal of establishing diversity and inclusion at all levels of its organization, including in respect of the designated groups. The Corporation is evaluating new initiatives aimed at increasing representation of designated groups amongst its Board members and senior management and, in an effort to reflect the diverse nature of the business environment in which the organization operates, the Corporation will be working towards developing targets against which to measure its progress in future years. To achieve its diversity goals, the Board will be considering the identifiable groups for which it may consider setting targets, working to understand the demographic composition for which the Corporation should reflect, and setting measurable objectives against which it can base its future progress.

Shareholder Engagement Policy

On March 10, 2020, the Corporation adopted a Shareholder Engagement Policy to reinforce its commitment to meaningful communication and engagement with its shareholders, especially on topics related to governance and compensation practices. The Shareholder Engagement Policy describes the Board's approach to shareholder engagement and provides information on how interested shareholders can contact the Board. The policy is available on the Corporation's website at www.tgod.ca.

In addition to shareholders attending the annual meeting and posing questions to management in person or online, there are numerous external engagement activities that the Corporation participates in to allow the Corporation the opportunity to communicate with Shareholders and other stakeholders directly, including quarterly conference calls, site visits, and investor road shows, to name a few.

Advance Notice Provisions

On October 9, 2020 the Board approved the Amended and Restated By-Law No.1 that includes advance notice provisions ("Advance Notice Provisions") that require advance notice must be provided to the Corporation in circumstances where nominations of persons for election to the Board are made by shareholders in accordance with and subject to the CBCA and Amended and Restated By-law No.1. The Advance Notice Provisions set a deadline by which Shareholders must submit nominations (a "Notice") for the election of directors to the Corporation prior to any annual meeting of Shareholders. In the case of an annual meeting of Shareholders, a Notice must be provided to the Corporation not less than 30 days and not more than 65 days prior to the date of the annual meeting, provided that if the annual meeting of Shareholders is called for a date that is less than 50 days after the date (the "Notice Date") on which the first public announcement of the date of the annual meeting was made, the Notice must be given no later than the close of business on the tenth day following the Notice Date, and in the case of a special meting of Shareholders called for the purpose of electing directors, not later than the close of business on the fifteenth

day following the Notice Date. As of the date of this Information Circular, the Corporation has not received a notice of nomination in compliance with the Advance Notice Provisions.

Ethical Business Conduct

The Corporation has adopted additional measures beyond the Corporation's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the monitoring of compliance with the Code, to promote a culture of ethical business conduct.

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation enters into transactions with persons with which a director and/or employee may have a relationship. If any such transactions are brought before the Board for discussion or approval, the affected director declares a conflict of interest and withdraws from any discussion or vote on any such transaction.

As part of the Corporation's commercial compliance program, the Corporation prepares training modules for employees, officers and directors in respect of compliance with the Corporation's policies and procedures. The Corporation's Whistleblower Policy supports maintenance of the highest possible ethical standards in our business practices, promotes a climate of openness and accountability and encourages employees to come forward in good faith to disclose genuine concerns and to detect, and/or forestall the continuation of, and prevent any violations of the Corporation's internal policies and procedures.

Orientation and Continuing Education

The Corporation provides all directors an onboarding director's manual containing the Board mandate, the charters of each board committee, terms of reference for the chairman, committee chair and CEO, the policies adopted by the Board and other corporate policies, a meeting schedule, contact lists for directors and senior management, copies of the most recent annual financial statements, MD&A, management information circular, annual information form and copies of equity-based compensation plans.

Our Board recognizes ongoing education as an important component of good governance. Although there is no formal continuing education program currently for the directors of the Corporation, the Corporation encourages directors to attend, enroll or participate in courses and/or conferences dealing with financial literacy, industry-specific, corporate governance and related matters.

At all times, the directors have access to officers and employees of the Corporation and may arrange meetings, either through CEO or the Corporate Secretary. In addition, management provides briefings to directors with respect to the business and operations of the Corporation which are generally scheduled to coincide with the Corporation's regular scheduled board meetings, and the directors perform annual site visits, when possible.

AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE

The Audit Committee's Charter

The charter (the "Audit Committee Charter") of the Audit Committee is reproduced as Schedule "B" to this Information Circular.

Composition of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of Chris Schnarr (Chair), Adam Jaffe, and Jacques, each of whom is a director of the Corporation. None of the Audit Committee members are employees, executive officers or control persons of the Corporation, in accordance with the composition requirements for venture issuers under NI 52-110. All members of the Audit Committee are considered "independent" as such term is defined in NI 52-110. The Corporation is of the opinion that all members of the Audit Committee are "financially literate" as such term is defined in NI 52-110.

Relevant Education and Experience

All the members of the Audit Committee have the education and/or practical experience required to understand and evaluate financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the Corporation's financial statements.

Chris Schnarr (Chair) - Mr. Schnarr is an entrepreneur with over 30 years of board experience across a range of industries, including cannabis, biotech, and health care. A graduate of the Director's Education Program at Rotman School of Business and holder of the ICD.D designation, Mr. Schnarr's board experience spans 10 public companies and three private companies. He has extensive committee experience, including Audit, Governance, and Compensation, having chaired Canopy Growth Corp.'s audit committee for four years.

Adam Jaffe – Mr. Jaffe is a certified Public Accountant in the state of New York. He has relevant experience from his roles serving as the Chief Financial Officer of Legato Merger Corp. II, Allegro Merger Corp., Crescendo Partners, L.P. and Jamarant Capital, L.P.

Jacques Dessureault – Mr. Dessureault is a pharmaceutical executive. He is currently Chairman of Optina Diagnostic. He is the founding partner and president of the BioInnov Group, and a member of the management committee of the CHU Sainte-Justine formulation Centre. In addition, he is also a director of two private boards. Mr. Dessureault holds bachelor's degree from l'Ecole des science de la gestion (ESG), a Master's degree in Marketing Science from the Leicester University in the UK and is a Charted Administrator with a dual designation from Laval and McMaster University.

Audit Committee Oversight

At no time since the commencement of the Corporation's most recently completed financial year have any recommendations by the Audit Committee respecting the nomination and/or compensation of the Corporation's external auditors not been adopted by the board of directors.

Reliance on Certain Exemptions

At no time since the commencement of the Corporation's most recently completed financial year has the Corporation relied on exemptions in relation to "*De Minimis Non-audit Services*" or any exemption provided by Part 8 of NI 52-110.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

Pursuant to the terms of the Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee shall pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to the Corporation or its subsidiary entities by the Corporation's external auditor.

External Auditor Service Fees (By Category)

Audit Fees – The Corporation's external auditor invoiced approximately \$770,202 to audit the financial year ended December 31, 2021 and \$1,483,219 to audit the financial year ended December 31, 2020.

Audit-Related Fees – No audit-related fees for administrative services incurred primarily related to the audit were incurred during the financial year ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Tax Fees – No tax fees for services related to compliance, planning and tax advice were incurred during the financial year ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

All Other Fees – The Corporation's external auditor invoiced no other fees for the financial years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Venture Issuer Exemption

The Corporation is relying upon the exemption in section 6.1 of NI 52-110.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Corporation is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. Financial information is contained in the Corporation's consolidated financial statements and management's discussion and analysis for the year ended December 31, 2021 and information with respect to the business of the Corporation is contained in the Corporation's annual information form for the year ended December 31, 2021. Shareholders may obtain copies of the Corporation's financial statements and management's discussion and analysis by contacting the Corporation at 6205 Airport Rd., Building A – Suite 200, Mississauga, Ontario L4V 1E3 or at (905) 304-4201.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board is not aware of any other matters which it anticipates will come before the Meeting as of the date of mailing of this Information Circular.

The contents of this Information Circular and its distribution to Shareholders has been approved by the Board.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario, May 17, 2022.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(signed) "Sean Bovingdon"
Sean Bovingdon
Chief Executive Officer & Director

SCHEDULE A BOARD MANDATE

I. INTRODUCTION

The board of directors (the "Board") of The Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd. (the "Corporation" or "TGOD") believes that the principal objective of the Corporation is to generate economic returns to its shareholders. The Board believes that good corporate governance practices provide an important framework for a timely response by the Corporation's Board to situations that may directly affect shareholder value.

The Board wishes to emphasize that the substance of good corporate governance at TGOD is more important than its form; adoption of a set of guidelines or principles or any particular practice or policy is not a substitute for, and does not itself assure, good corporate governance.

The Board has plenary power. Any responsibility not delegated to management or a committee of the Board remains with the Board.

II. BOARD OPERATING GUIDELINES

These guidelines govern how the Board will operate to carry out its duties of stewardship and accountability.

a. The Board-Management Relationship

- i. By law, the Board is called upon to "manage" or "supervise the management" of the business of the Corporation. At TGOD, the Chief Executive Officer (the "CEO") is responsible for the day-to-day leadership and management of the Corporation and the Board supervises the CEO.
- ii. The CEO's prime responsibility is to lead the Corporation. The CEO formulates the Corporation's policies, strategic plans and goals, in conjunction with the Board. The Board approves the goals of the business, its objectives and policies within which it is managed, and then steps back and evaluates management performance. Reciprocally, the CEO keeps the Board fully informed of the Corporation's progress towards the achievement of its goals and of all material deviations from the goals or objectives and policies established by the Board in a timely and candid manner.
- iii. Once the Board has approved the goals, strategies and policies, it acts in a unified and cohesive manner in supporting and guiding the CEO subject to its duty to act in the best interests of the Corporation.

b. Chairman of the Board

The chairman of the Board (the "Chairman") will be appointed by the Board and has the responsibility to ensure the Board operates effectively and has the ability to act independently of management when necessary.

c. Board Independence

The Board must have the capacity, independently of management, to fulfill the Board's responsibilities. The Board must be able to make an objective assessment of management and assess the merits of management initiatives. Independence is based upon the absence of relationships and interests that could compromise the ability of a director to exercise judgment with a view to the best interests of the Corporation. Therefore, the Corporation is committed to the following practices:

- i. the appointment of a Chairman;
- ii. the recruitment of strong, independent directors;

- the Board will be composed of a majority of Independent Directors. "Independent Directors" will have the meaning given to it under applicable securities legislation and stock exchange policies on which any of the Corporation's capital stock is listed;
- iv. any director who is deemed independent and whose circumstances change such that he or she might be considered to no longer be an independent director, shall promptly advise the Board of the change in circumstances;
- v. the Governance and Nominating Committee leads the director selection/evaluation process and the CEO evaluation process;
- vi. all committees are constituted with a majority of whom will be independent directors; and
- vii. the independent directors meet at the end of every scheduled Board meeting under the leadership of the Chairman.

d. Corporate Strategy

Management is responsible for the development of an overall corporate strategy to be presented to the Board. The Board's role is to ensure there is a strategic planning process, and then review, question, validate, and ultimately approve the strategic plan and monitor its implementation.

e. Risk Management

The Board, in conjunction with management, will identify the principal risks associated with the business and oversee management's implementation of appropriate systems to effectively monitor, manage and mitigate the impact of such risks. The principal mechanisms through which the Board reviews risks are:

- i. on-going reports by the CEO;
- ii. the strategic planning process;
- iii. the Audit Committee; and
- iv. external reports, as appropriate.

f. Succession Planning

The Board considers succession planning and management development to be an ongoing process, including periodic reports to the Board by the CEO. The CEO's view as to a successor in the event of unexpected incapacity should be discussed regularly with the Governance and Nominating Committee.

g. Board Communications Policy

- i. The Board approves the content of the Corporation's major communications to shareholders and the investing public, including the quarterly and annual press releases, the management proxy circular, the annual information form and any prospectuses that may be issued.
- ii. The Board believes that it is the function of management to speak for the Corporation in its communications with the investment community, the media, customers, suppliers, employees, governments and the general public. It is understood that individual directors may, from time to time, be requested by management to assist with such communications.
- iii. It is expected that when communications from stakeholders are made to individual directors, management will be informed and consulted to determine any appropriate response to be made by the Board or management, as the case may be.

h. Evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer

The Compensation Committee annually leads the Board in assessing the CEO's performance against objectives and other relevant criteria established the previous year by the Board and the CEO.

i. Code of Conduct and Ethical Behaviour

The Board expects all directors, officers and employees of the Corporation and its subsidiaries to conduct themselves in accordance with the highest ethical standards and adhere to the Corporation's *Code of Business Conduct and Ethics* (the "Code") in place from time to time.

j. Conflict of Interest

Directors must never be in an undisclosed conflict of interest with the Corporation. A director who has a real, perceived or potential conflict of interest regarding a particular matter under consideration should advise the Board, refrain from debate on the matter and abstain from any vote regarding that matter.

k. Board Size and Composition

- i. Nominees for directors are initially considered and recommended by the Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board, approved by the entire Board and elected annually by the shareholders of the Corporation.
- ii. The Board is committed to reviewing its size regularly and currently considers six directors to be an appropriate number for the size of the Corporation and sufficient to provide an appropriate mix of backgrounds and skills for the stewardship of the Corporation. In general, the Board believes smaller boards are more cohesive and work more effectively than larger Boards.
- iii. The Board is committed to maintaining and planning for a majority of independent directors. Any future expansion of the Board will be targeted to maintain a majority of the directors as independent.
- iv. At its meeting to approve the Information Circular for the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Corporation, the Board shall consider and determine whether or not a director or nominee to be a director is independent.
- v. Certain of the responsibilities of the Board referred to herein may be delegated to committees of the Board. The responsibilities of those committees will be as set forth in their respective charters, as amended from time to time.

1. Criteria for Board Membership

- i. The Governance and Nominating Committee will annually review the general and specific criteria applicable to candidates to be considered for nomination to the Board, if applicable.
- ii. The objective of this review will be to maintain the composition of the Board in a way that provides the best mix of skills and experience to guide the long term strategy and ongoing business operations of the Corporation.
- iii. This review will take into account the desirability of maintaining a reasonable diversity of background skills and experience and personal characteristics among the directors, and will take into consideration the Corporation's Diversity & Inclusion Policy, along with the key common characteristics required for effective Board participation.

m. Selection of New Directors

- i. The Board is responsible for identifying suitable candidates to be recommended for election to the Board by the shareholders, and will give due consideration to the Corporation's Diversity & Inclusion Policy.
- ii. The Governance and Nominating Committee has the responsibility to:
 - A. lead the Board in assessing what competencies and skills are necessary for the Board as a whole to possess;
 - B. assess the competencies and skills of the existing directors; and
 - C. assess the competencies and skills of any new nominee to the Board, against the current skills and experience needs of the Board and make recommendations to the full Board.
- iii. All directors are encouraged to identify potential candidates for new directors.
- iv. The CEO provides additional direct input to the process.
- v. An invitation to stand as a nominee for election to the Board will normally be made to a candidate by the Board through the Chairman.

n. Directors' Outside Board Membership

- i. Interlocking Boards
 - A. No two directors shall sit together on two or more public company corporate boards, inclusive of the Corporation, without the approval of the Board.
 - B. If such a situation does exist on the Board, the Governance and Nominating Committee shall annually review the continued appropriateness of the situation and make a recommendation to the Board.
- ii. Multiple Board Memberships
 - A. No director shall sit on four or more public company corporate boards, inclusive of the Corporation, without the approval of the Board.
 - B. If any director does sit on four or more public company corporate boards (inclusive of the Corporation), the Governance and Nominating Committee shall annually review the appropriateness of that director's continued membership on the TGOD Board and make a recommendation to the Board.

The Board recognizes that participation on a board of directors requires a commitment of time on the part of any director. The person best able to determine whether he or she has sufficient time available to participate as a director of a company is the director in question. Many factors impact the amount of time a director may have to devote to board duties. In circumstances where a director has full time employment in addition to his or her duties as a director, that time may be more limited than that of a director without a full-time position. Certain board assignments carry requirements for varying amounts of time, often depending on the size of a company or the complexity of its operations. In determining whether to grant approval for an individual to sit on more than four public company boards, the Governance and Nominating Committee will enter into discussions with the director involved to ensure that he or she has the time available to discharge his or her responsibilities appropriately.

o. Director Retirement Age

There is no retirement policy for directors.

p. Term

Directors are elected or re-elected annually by shareholders. There is an informal expectation by the Board that each director will commit to serving his or her term at least until the next annual shareholders' meeting. The Board does not believe that it should establish a limit on the number of times a director may stand for election. While the Board is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board and recognizes the value of Board renewal where fresh ideas and viewpoints are available, the Board believes it would be unduly restrictive and not in the best interests of the Corporation to adopt specific director term limits. Industry knowledge and insights into the Corporation and its operations along with commitment and expertise are vital to the successful functioning of the Board.

Board efficacy will be assured through the annual and periodic comprehensive assessment of directors, the Board and its committees, the annual consideration of Board composition by the Governance and Nominating Committee and the processes for identifying director nominees to be recommended for election to the Board by the shareholders, and not through the imposition of arbitrary term limits. For additional information regarding Board evaluation, please refer to section "z" below.

q. Board Meetings and Agendas

- i. The Board meets a minimum of four times per year, usually every quarter.
- ii. The CEO, in consultation with the Corporate Secretary and the Chairman, develops the agenda for each Board meeting. All directors are free to suggest items to be included on the agenda.
- iii. Under normal circumstances, the agenda and materials will be distributed to directors not less than seven days in advance of the meeting.
- iv. The Board may adopt the use of consent resolutions for its convenience from time to time.
- v. A quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the directors shall consist of majority of the directors present. A quorum of directors may exercise all the powers of the directors at a meeting.
- vi. A director may participate in a Board meeting by means of such telephonic, electronic or other communication facilities as to permit all persons participating in the meeting to communicate adequately with each other. Any member participating in said meeting by any such means is deemed to be present at the meeting.
- vii. Directors will maintain the absolute confidentiality of Board deliberations and decisions and information received at meetings, except as may be specified by the Chairman, if the information is publicly disclosed by the Corporation, or as required by applicable law. The views or opinions of individual directors or managers shall be treated with an appropriate level of respect and confidence.
- viii. At Board and committee meetings there exists an open atmosphere that encourages discussion of alternative views. From time to time, informal offsite sessions may be held to further enhance/encourage discussion of ideas, strategies and issues.
- ix. Directors are expected to attend all meetings of the Board and the committees upon which they serve, to come to such meetings fully prepared (including full review of all documentation sent prior to the meeting), and to remain in attendance for the duration of the meeting. Where a director's absence from a meeting is unavoidable, the director should, as soon as practicable after the meeting, contact the Chairman, the CEO or the Corporate Secretary for a briefing on the substantive elements of the meeting.

r. Meetings of Independent Directors

- i. At the end of each Board meeting, the independent directors shall meet briefly under the leadership of the Chairman.
- ii. The purpose of the meeting will be to provide an opportunity for the independent directors to raise issues that they did not wish to discuss with management present. Matters that are commonly discussed in-camera include:
 - A. Board issues such as internal problems and factions;
 - B. Board objectives and performance;
 - C. Board and management succession planning;
 - D. Reviewing the CEO's performance, compensation and employment status
 - E. Reviewing personnel and employment/labour matters;
 - F. Discussing government policies and their implications for the organization; and
 - G. Discussing legal advice and litigation
- iii. The Chairman will meet with the CEO, if applicable, to discuss the results of the meeting.

s. **Board Meetings**

The Board shall have a minimum of four regularly scheduled meetings per year. In addition, special meetings may be called from time to time as determined by the needs of the Corporation's business.

t. Board Information

- i. Material distributed to the directors in advance of Board meetings shall be concise, yet complete, and prepared in a way that focuses attention on critical issues to be considered.
- ii. Reports may be presented during Board meetings by directors, management or staff, or by invited outside advisors. Presentations on specific subjects at Board meetings shall briefly summarize the material sent to directors, so as to maximize the time available for discussion on questions regarding the material.
- iii. It is recognized that under some circumstances, due to the confidential nature of matters to be discussed at a meeting, it would not be prudent or appropriate to distribute written material in advance.

u. Board Minutes

The Chairman and CEO shall be provided with draft minutes of each meeting of the Board in a timely manner. The approved minutes serve as the official record of the Board meeting.

v. Non-Directors at Board Meetings

- i. The Board appreciates the value of having certain members of senior management attend Board meetings to provide information and opinion to assist the directors in their deliberations.
- ii. The CEO, in consultation with the Chairman, will determine who shall attend Board meetings and for which agenda items. For issues that fall within the charter of a committee, a committee chair may also recommend non-directors attendees to the Chairman;

iii. No non-director shall attend or table material without prior approval of the CEO or Chairman, and in the case of a committee meeting, the committee chair.

w. Committees

- i. Committees analyze in depth, policies and strategies developed by management, which are consistent with their charters. They examine proposals and, where appropriate, make recommendations to the full Board. Committees do not take action or make decisions on behalf of the Board unless specifically mandated to do so.
- ii. Each committee operates according to a Board approved written charter outlining its duties and responsibilities. Guidelines regarding the operation of Committees are outlined in Tab [x] of the Board Manual.
- iii. The current committee structure consists of:
 - A. Audit Committee
 - B. Governance and Nominating Committee
 - C. Compensation Committee
- iv. The Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible to the Board for proposing the leadership and membership of each committee on an annual basis. In preparing its recommendations, the Governance and Nominating Committee will consult with the CEO, and take into account the preferences of the individual directors.
- v. The Board, with the advice of the Governance and Nominating Committee, will set the remuneration, if any, for committee members.
- vi. Each committee will meet at least once each year, or more frequently as deemed necessary by the committee.
- vii. A committee member may participate in a committee meeting by means of telephonic, electronic or other communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the meeting to communicate adequately with each other.

x. Board Contact with Senior Management

- i. All of the directors have open access to the Corporation's Senior Management. It is expected that directors will exercise judgment to ensure that their contacts will not distract from the Corporation's business operations.
- ii. Written communications from directors to members of management will be copied to the Chairman, and the CEO.
- iii. The Board also encourages individual directors to make themselves available for consultation with management outside Board meetings in order to provide specific advice and counsel on subjects where such directors have special knowledge and experience.

y. New Director Orientation

New directors will be provided with an orientation and education program which will include written information about the duties and obligations of directors, the business and operations of the Corporation, documents from recent Board meetings and opportunities for meetings and discussion with senior management and other directors. The details of the orientation of each new director will be tailored to that director's individual needs and areas of interest.

z. Evaluating Board Performance

The Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for developing and implementing an annual assessment of the performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors to determine whether it, the directors, and the committees are performing effectively. The Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for seeking comments from all directors and reporting to the full Board the collective assessment of the Board's performance as well as the committees and individual directors. The assessment of individual directors will consider the diversity of skill sets and competencies applicable to that director as it relates to the overall alignment of the Board's areas of expertise essential for execution of the Corporation's strategy. The full Board will discuss the assessment reports and determine what, if any, action should be taken to improve performance.

aa. Director Compensation

The Compensation Committee will review director compensation annually, and in consultation with the Governance and Nominating Committee. The Committee will make recommendations to the Board for consideration when it believes changes in compensation are warranted.

bb. Loans

The Company will not make any personal loans or extensions of credit to directors or executive officers.

cc. Limits to Management Authority

From time to time, the Board establishes limits on management's authority depending on the nature and size of proposed transactions. These limits permit some flexibility within approved budgets for line additions and deletions but otherwise the budget must not be exceeded without Board approval.

dd. Outside Advisors for Individual Directors

Occasionally, individual directors may need the services of an advisor to assist on matters involving their responsibilities as a Board member. The Board has determined that any director who wishes to engage an outside advisor at the expense of the Corporation, obtain the approval of the Chairman, in consultation with the CEO.

ee. Ongoing Director Education

The Board recognizes the importance of continuing education to enhance the directors' skills, abilities and understanding of the Corporation's business. The directors are expected to be informed about current best practices, emerging trends in corporate governance and relevant regulatory developments. While directors take personal responsibility for staying current, the Governance and Nominating Committee will use best efforts to facilitate ongoing education by:

- A. periodically canvasing the directors to determine their training and education needs and interests;
- B. arranging ongoing visitation by directors to the Corporation's facilities and operations; and
- C. encouraging and facilitating presentations by outside experts to the Board or committees on matters of particular importance or emerging significance.

ff. Board Mandate Review

The Board shall review this Board Mandate periodically and update it to reflect changes as required by securities regulatory agencies or stock exchanges, or reflect corporate practices and industry standards.

SCHEDULE B AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

I. MANDATE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The audit committee is appointed by the board of directors (the "Board") of the Green Organic Dutchman Holdings Ltd. (the "Corporation") to oversee the accounting and financial reporting process of the Corporation and audits of the financial statements of the Corporation. The audit committee's primary duties and responsibilities are to:

- a. recommend to the Board the external auditor to be nominated for the purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor's report or performing other audit, review or attest services for the Corporation;
- b. recommend to the Board the compensation of the external auditor;
- c. oversee the work of the external auditor engaged for the purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor's report or performing other audit, review or attest services for the Corporation, including the resolution of disagreements between management and the external auditor regarding financial reporting;
- d. pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to the Corporation or its subsidiaries by the Corporation's external auditor;
- e. review the Corporation's financial statements, MD&A and annual and interim earnings press releases before the Corporation publicly discloses this information;
- f. be satisfied that adequate procedures are in place for the review of all other public disclosure of financial information extracted or derived from the Corporation's financial statements, and to periodically assess the adequacy of those procedures;
- g. establish procedures for:
 - i. the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Corporation regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters; and
 - ii. the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Corporation of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters; and
- h. review and approve the Corporation's hiring policies regarding partners, employees and former partners and employees of the present and former external auditor of the Corporation.

The Board and management will ensure that the audit committee has adequate funding to fulfill its duties and responsibilities.

II. PRE-APPROVAL OF NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The audit committee may delegate to one or more of its members the authority to pre-approve non-audit services to be provided to the Corporation or its subsidiaries by the Corporation's external auditor. The pre-approval of non-audit services must be presented to the audit committee at its first scheduled meeting following such pre-approval.

The audit committee may satisfy its duty to pre-approve non-audit services by adopting specific policies and procedures for the engagement of the non-audit services, provided the policies and procedures are detailed as to the particular service, the audit committee is informed of each non-audit service and the procedures do not include delegation of the audit committee's responsibilities to management.

III. EXTERNAL ADVISORS

The audit committee has the authority to conduct any investigation appropriate to fulfilling its responsibilities, and it has direct access to the external auditors as well as anyone in the organization. The audit committee has the ability to retain, at

the Corporation's expense, special legal, accounting or other consultants or experts it deems necessary in the performance of its duties.

IV. EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors are ultimately accountable to the audit committee and the Board, as representatives of the shareholders. The external auditors will report directly to the audit committee. The audit committee will:

- a. review the independence and performance of the external auditors and annually recommend to the Board the nomination of the external auditors or approve any discharge of external auditors when circumstances warrant:
- b. approve the fees and other significant compensation to be paid to the external auditors;
- c. on an annual basis, review and discuss with the external auditors all significant relationships they have with the Corporation that could impair the external auditors' independence;
- d. review the external auditors' audit plan to see that it is sufficiently detailed and covers any significant areas of concern that the audit committee may have;
- e. before or after the financial statements are issued, discuss certain matters required to be communicated to audit committees in accordance with the standards established by the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada;
- f. consider the external auditors' judgments about the quality and appropriateness of the Corporation's accounting principles as applied in the Corporation's financial reporting;
- g. consider the external auditors' judgments regarding any alternative treatments of financial information within generally accepted accounting principles that have been discussed with management, ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and treatments and the treatment preferred by the external auditors;
- h. resolve any disagreements between management and the external auditors regarding financial reporting; and
- i. approve in advance all audit services and any non-prohibited non-audit services to be undertaken by the external auditors for the Corporation.

V. LEGAL COMPLIANCE

On at least an annual basis, the audit committee will review with the Corporation's legal counsel any legal matters that could have a significant impact on the organization's financial statements, the Corporation's compliance with applicable laws and regulations and inquiries received from regulators or governmental agencies.

VI. COMPLAINTS

Individuals are strongly encouraged to approach a member of the audit committee with any complaints or concerns regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters. The audit committee will from time to time establish procedures for the submission, receipt and treatment of such complaints and concerns. In all cases the audit committee will conduct a prompt, thorough and fair examination, document the situation and, if appropriate, recommend to the Board appropriate corrective action.

To the extent practicable, all complaints will be kept confidential. The Corporation will not condone any retaliation for a complaint made in good faith.